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Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified)

(LB BETREN - BRFIZHI)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debts to
total equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables
to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)
Net assets per share (HK cents)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)
Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)
Dividend yield (%)
Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China

Total
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Notes 2021
WE  —%=-f
7,352 7,630 8,210 8,531 7,858
274 169 325 304 479
5,400 4,930 5,378 5725 5,897
8,740 8312 8,579 9,220 9,975
0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7
0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.4
2.2 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
58 44 42 45 37
119 101 97 9 95
391 357 389 380 394
3.1 2.0 38 33 438
3.7 22 40 3.6 6.1
1 15 5 12 12 20
2 903 821 693 769 802
12.3 10.8 8.4 9.0 10.2
3 19.8 12.2 235 220 34.6
15.0 10.0 30.0 35.0 62.0
4 84 8.0 10.2 8.5 11.9
1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
555 47 769 697 601
- 7 9 10 10
11,981 11,111 11,879 12,638 13,368
12,536 11,589 12,657 13,345 13,979




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement [EiREE

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to present the Group’s
consolidated financial results for the financial year ended 31 March
2021.

For the year, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company was HK$274 million, an increase of 62.1% when compared
with HK$169 million reported for 2020. Revenue decreased by 3.6% and
gross margin was slightly lower at 31.0%. The Board has declared a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents per share.

Last year was one of the most challenging years in the Group’s history.
The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic severely hurt the global
economy. In China, many factories suspended their operation to contain
the spread of the virus in the first quarter. The Group was thus impacted
due to temporary suspension of production facilities in Dongguan.
Moreover, business orders decreased as a result of slowed down
worldwide economic activities. Quarantine and lockdown measures also
greatly weakened the consumer sentiment in China. Apart from the
pandemic, the Sino-US political tension continued which affected the
supply of raw materials in China. The Group had to source more cotton
materials from other countries and cotton prices were quite volatile all
the year through. In the period, the appreciation of RMB added another
cost pressure to the Group.

China’s economy started to rebound from the second quarter mainly
due to effective pandemic controlling measures. Stronger demand from
Europe and the U.S. happened in the second half of the year. The recent
vaccine developments have created expectations for further global
economic recovery. However, many uncertainties are still ahead.

Under such adverse operating environment in the year, the Group
dedicated best efforts in maintaining a solid financial position. Capital
expenditure was temporary tightened. However, the Group expects
further market consolidation in the line of business will continue in
the coming years. Recently, the Group is planning to set up a new
garment factory in Henan, China in order to enhance its productivity.
When the global economic situation turns even more stable, the Group
will continue its plan to establish another textile production base in
Southeast Asia.

The Group will monitor closely the market situation to deploy necessary
measures. With a strong financial position, the management is positive
that the Group can achieve improved results in the coming year. On
behalf of the board, | would like to thank our shareholders, business
partners and bankers for their continuous support. | would also like
to place my gratitude to our colleagues for their devotedness to the
Group.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 June 2021
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis EE g 2 i

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2021, the Group's total revenue
decreased by 3.6% to HK$7,352 million (2020: HK$7,630 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$274 million (2020: HK$169 million), a growth of
62.1%. The Group’s gross profit margin was 31.0% (2020: 32.0%), a
slight decrease of 1.0 percentage point from last year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2020:
Nil). Including the interim dividend of HK5.0 cents (2020: HK10.0 cents),
total dividend per ordinary share for the year would be HK15.0 cents
(2020: HK10.0 cents), an increase of 50.0% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business decreased by 5.6% to HK$4,644 million
(2020: HK$4,919 million). The amount represented 63.2% (2020:
64.5%) of the Group's total revenue. The operating environment was
quite difficult in the first quarter due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. Production facilities were temporary suspended and business
orders decreased due to slowed down of global economic activities.
The Sino-U.S. tensions continued which affected the supply of cotton
materials in China. Raw material prices were generally quite volatile in
the period. From the second quarter onwards, operating performance
had turned to be more favourable. In the year, revenue decreased by
5.6% and gross profit margin increased by 0.6 percentage points. The
performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as below:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LOBRBETBEN + BRFZHI)

L K2 3 4

EBEIRERARRER
BE_Z-—F=A=+—-HLEXHHREE &&F
B2 BRABD36%EBETI2EBT(ZE-ZE

FB¥T7,630HET) c ANAEEERIEEEMN
REEGNABE2714FET(ZE-ZF | BH169

BHET)  ERE62.1% - AEBZEFEE31.0% (=
TEF 132.0%) 0 BRAFEMTERI.OEERDE °
BEESEBIRBE AR ’éﬂﬁﬁuﬁi&%moﬂh(—
T_TF ﬂ)oﬁﬂﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ BEESO(=ZE =
TF ,ﬁmmoﬂm LERREZFERELB
SO ZZEZZF ¢ ,ﬂzm.oﬂh) P BEFE LA
50.0% °

e

B ER cEEETH5.6% 2B 464408 (=
TEE BEA49198B ) ﬁt;&a%mﬁiw
¥E63.2%(ZFFF 1 64.5%) - Z19HET

MERBRTE KERNESE -—SHHERNE - EEEX
BEEFEREZREERESFTET K - PEER

BEFESE T PERR ZHIE - RRESESRRN—
RERAKE - HE MK KERBEAEHN - F
W AT E5.6%MERR EFHO0.6/EE 72 o k3
B2 RIRRETEGIELERRIAT ¢

Net sales HEFHE 4,644 4919 4,759 4,535 3,807
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 238 23.2 18.3 15.9 16.9
Operating profit (note 1) EERBEET) 567 540 354 241 350
EBITDA (note 1) BB ERESERFE ) m 770 526 410 518
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(HiF2) 6.1 6.9 4.2 1.9 49
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWEE (%) (H1E2) 9.2 8.9 5.9 2.9 10.2
Return on equity (%) (note 2) ERWEE(%) (M72) 9.1 10.8 6.8 3.0 8.4
Capital expenditure ERMRH 126 76 160 162 143
Notes: (1) Exclude interest income and rental income. Kiat - (1) TEEZFAERARBEENRA -

(2) Exclude rental income.

(2) TEEFEHEERA -

RAEXRERRLF

—E——

FH



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il &2 547

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT X HENEARERE &)
(continued)
Retail and distribution business TERDHER

Sales of the business amounted to HK$2,705 million (2020: HK$2,709
million). The amount was 36.8% (2020: 35.5%) of the Group'’s total
turnover. Since the beginning of the year, the COVID-19 pandemic
had severely hurt the global economy and consumer sentiments. City
lockdowns, social distancing measures and temporary suspension of
retail operation squeezed business time of our stores. As the lockdowns
relaxed in the second half of the year, revenue had begun to improve.
The performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as
below:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as
follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LB BETBEN - BFRFEZHI)

WEBHEFEBBE2ICEET(ZE_ZF 1 B
2,709 E ) - BB AREEBE T 236.8%
(ZZEZFF 1 355%) - AARFAHE - 198 TA
FEREBRESETRBEEREERGSD « #HH - 1
EREEERTSEER TG FERE T AEEEHE
¥R c HBET ¥ FHBEERMRE  EX5EmMn L
Fto MEBKRBREEGFFLERBIIAT :

(@) EBRBREIBUBLLRBIMT

Net sales HEFH 2,705 2,709 3,448 3,989 4,044
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 441 475 50.1 47.4 455
Sales growth of comparable shops ALt /ERSEEL R LR (%) (H15E1)

(%) (note 1) (8.4) (17.1) (12.8) (6.9) (7.8)
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) BEFE/(BE) (222 (199) (316) (110) 14 (%)
EBITDA (note 2) BB EREBHARIEHE2) 108 3 (24) 102 (1n
Return on total assets (%) (note 3)  BEEWHE(%)(H23) (6.9) (11.9) @.3) 0.4 (4.8)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) EEWEE(%) (H1:73) (6.8) (10.6) (2.9) 0.2 (2.3)
Return on equity (%) (note 3) BRUWEE(%) (M73) (29.6) (53.4) (8.8) 0.7 (15.9)
Capital expenditure BT H 57 146 76 9% 73

Notes: (1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation B . (1) HHEHERZFREN —FHGEE

during the year and the preceding year.
(2) Exclude interest income and rental income.
(3) Exclude rental income.

(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

FRBHEA -
2) TEEFEKARELKA -
() TEEHSKA -

(b) HEBREHEINUOT ¢

(HK$'million)
(B¥EET)
Baleno HREK 2,525 2,484 3,073 3,274 3,144
Others Hit 180 225 375 715 900
Total A3 2,705 2,709 3,448 3,989 4,044

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il K 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(0

Mainland China

the development in different markets was as follows:

(0

EKOERARER®)

ZERDHER(H)
EHHISRRERMT

LEPN

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)*

Number of sales associates

Number of outlets™

Hong Kong

WERE(EREET) 2,184 2,085 2,767 3,414 3,476

BEFELEM (D)%) 5 (25) (19) @ (13)

DEEEmE(FLR) 1,867,355 1,690,117 1,626,047 1,781,314 1,723,190

EESEE (= 3,919 3,446 4,182 4,946 5,493

FImEAE 2,026 1,838 2,183 2,499 2,326
e

Net sales (HK$'million) HEFR(EHEET) 521 624 681 575 568
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)  $HEFE2EM,/ (A )(%) (17) (8) 18 1 )}
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREEE(FIR)" 96,516 90,281 87,752 79,822 65,515
Number of sales associates ** EXEHA" 377 288 571 484 385
Number of outlets * MmEE 88 83 78 73 60
As at the end of the reporting period RIRERIK
# For self-managed stores # B&E
4 Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise ) BIEEEE « BT RIS
stores

RAEXRERRLF
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B g 2 i

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 2.2, HK$855 million and -0.2 (2020: 2.0, HK$1,230
million and -0.1) respectively. Bank borrowings decreased during the
year as the Group continued to repay its bank loans with cash inflow
from its operating activities and bank deposits. The gearing ratio refers
to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash
equivalents, to the total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 15 times, 58 days and
119 days (2020: 5 times, 44 days and 101 days) respectively. The interest
cover increased compared with last year mainly due to the increase
in profit before tax and the decrease in finance cost during the year
compared with those of the last year. The Group mainly satisfied its
funding requirements with cash inflow from its operating activities and
bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, the
equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
unutilized banking facilities were HK$1,700 million, HK$5,400 million
and HK$5,910 million (2020: HK$1,737 million, HK$4,930 million and
HK$5,491 million), respectively.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$183 million (2020: HK$222 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile and garment business for the year was HK$126 million
(2020: HK$76 million), of which HK$97 million was for the addition of
plant and machinery for the dyeing, knitting and garment business and
HK$29 million was for “Coal to Gas” conversion project. For the retail
and distribution business, our capital expenditure incurred for the year
amounted to HK$57 million (2020: HK$146 million) was mainly for the
addition of leasehold improvements of the retail outlets (2020: HK$55
million for the addition of leasehold improvements of the retail outlets
and HK$91 million for the acquisition of office premises in Hong Kong).

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

7l }2 7 #

MR

REBESRHBER
FEBREESRIFNTERR - REAER KB
b RITERBERELREELESFH2.215 -
BHSSSEBITR — 025 (2T 22F [ 2.01% ~ B
1,230BB TR —0.11%) « RERPITER T » £
ZHATEBEREUCEMBNRESRARRTER
BERITEN - EAEBLEERDENRRERESE
B NEK SESIR AR -

RAE fgﬁfﬁatlﬂ“ FEW BR TR I B L & SR FE )

EBEXHERTFE (AR ED B A5 - 58K
&119%(_7_ FI5(F 44RK101K) o R

£ NERELREEE LT  TEARKEERE
FERBANGA EARMBEERATR - REBEEL
BEFBRERARBTERNEIHEEESNTE
ReRAER  BERESEEY - AATLERE
B EEREERR A ARITEEEDI B ABYE
17005%7‘5 B¥5,400 B BT REBHE5 91088 T
TECTF I E737EET  B¥4,9308ET
KBS A0V HETT) ©

BEARMTH

AEBRAEREAMIHAEBIS3EEL(ZE
TEF I BEB22HEER) c HBRRKELEAFESE
AEZHABEI1I268E8T(ZE_=F | B¥768
Erx) HPBKo7TaBTAESR  BRMKKEBK
ﬁﬁi%&%%ﬁ 1%9’314“ ; BE20EE B AR
RIRE- DHERIE  AENERMEIHA

,ﬁﬁ%m%m(_q_ S BE146EET) B
ARABEEEHNEERR(ZE-2F | B¥s55

BELARZEEHNEEXR  BEIEERLA
EREBEERLENE) -



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis EE g 2 i

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Pledge of assets

No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020 have been set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest bearing
bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed or
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within one year (2020:
within one year). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, debt
instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. The cash
and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits with well established
financial institutions at fixed interest rate with maturity due within one
year (2020: within one year). And, the debt instruments at amortised
cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were mainly
fixed interest rate investments with maturity due within four years or
at perpetuity (2020: within six years or at perpetuity). Following the
containment of the widespread of COVID-19 pandemic, the economic
activities continue to accelerate. It is expected that the USD interest
rate will be kept at the low level for a longer period to support the
economic recovery. The Group will continue to monitor the interest
rate risk and arrange appropriate financial instruments to reduce its risk
whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and
YEN (2020: HKD, USD, RMB, YEN and NTD) and the Group had arranged
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange
risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had about 12,536 (2020: 11,589) employees
in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees was largely
based on industry practice and the performance of individual employee.

L K2 3 4
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il &2 547

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system
is reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the

relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1)  World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(3)  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(4) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”;

(5) Ocean Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong’s “Run for
Survival 2020"; and

(6) Hong Kong Red Cross “Red Twinkle Star Campaign 2020-2021".

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the coming year will continue to be challenging. At this
time, the COVID-19 is still not under controlled in many places of the
world. Vaccine developments have generated positive expectation for
a global economic recovery. However, it is difficult to predict the pace
of full economic turnaround. The Group will focus on maintaining a
strong cash flow to face for an eventual global recovery. At the same
time, the Group will continue its plan of development in enhancing
business market share. Recently, the Group has decided to establish a
new garment plant in Henan, China to raise productivity and expand
vertically integrated supply chain. The Group expects significant market
consolidation will be going on in the coming years. The management is
also investigating to establish a new textile plant in Southeast Asia for
diversifying business weight.

Though the business environment is volatile, the Group remains positive
about the business outlook. The management will closely monitor the
market situation in deploying necessary measures.
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Report of the Directors EE & H &

The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments; the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories and the
provision of franchise services. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group's environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
13, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 48 to 51.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
order to allow shareholders of the Group to participate in the Group's
profits whilst retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth.
The Group intends to make semiannual distributions which will
depend upon the anticipated consolidated annual profits of the Group,
having taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial performance, retained profits,
distributable reserves, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, future expansion plans and any other factors
which the Board deems relevant.

An interim dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 8
January 2021. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 25 August 2021.
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Report of the Directors EE S 4

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not

MBEERE
TRARMEERNBAERAMBEEA HEERE
E - BEEFRRER 2 HE DG SRR
RREBEESEDE - WHED THASERY
BRER 2D o

form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“R--F CRCRF RN CE-\E CER
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYFr  BEFT  E¥TT  BEFn BETx
REVENUE WA 7,351,573 7,630,306 8,210,053 8,530,806 7,858,476
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 419,692 270,976 397,753 467,858 520,057
Income tax expense g (145,733) (101,922) (77,336) (151,108) (13,521)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 273,959 169,054 320,417 316,750 506,536
Attributable to: 5B
Ordinary equity holders of ARREBEEREE
the Company 274,213 169,054 325,246 304,328 478,525
Non-controlling interests FERER (254) - (4,829) 12,422 28,01
273,959 169,054 320,417 316,750 506,536

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BE  AEEFERER

As at 31 March

ZH=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--F CZZ-TF ZE-NEF ZE-N\f ZZ—tF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT  BETT  BETT  BETT  BETT
TOTAL ASSETS wEE 8,740,394 8312332 8578956 9,219,807 9,975,465
TOTAL LIABILITIES “eE (3,340,641)  (3,382,119)  (3,201,402)  (3,494,818)  (4,078,062)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR 251 - - (475671)  (447,770)
5,400,004 4930213 5377554 5249318 5,449,633
BAERDERAT —T-— 5% G
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2021, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution and/
or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,286,530,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve,
in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$2,465,000 (2020: HK$1,136,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and
still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 72, is the executive chairman of the Company
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 49 years' experience in the textile
field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an executive director of the
Group, and the father-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 65, is the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 44, is an executive director of the Company.
After his studies at The University of New South Wales, Australia, he
joined the Group as a management trainee in 2003. In October 2017,
he was appointed as the executive director of the Group overseeing
the overall general management of the textile business. He is a son of
Mr. Poon Bun Chak and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior
management of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 75, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of CEC International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he was
a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008), a member of
the Election Committee for the financial services subsector election for
the 1998 Legislative Council, a former deputy chairman of The Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former
council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 71, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 63, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and private equity.
Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree
in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 58, joined the Group in 1997 and is the Group’s
financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales, Australia,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia.
He has more than 34 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 55, is the director and general manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group's textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 33 years’ experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 37, joined the Group in 2013 and is a director
of the Group’s retail operations. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 13 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and
a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon Ho Tak.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) set out Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director (€T E1d14Y

EsnA =27

Executive directors:

HITES

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWE KIREE 2RI A

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

THE BEnES

BEEREREEAEBRE®)

EREEAR

BRESELE - AT N\B  AEEBRERLTW
& o BR—ANECFMAREE o REEFERMH
FRERASEMMET S0 YAEESHMAS:
REERBNEHMOLAEEE - HABA=THFW
FErTEETEER -

SEFPRE - BTER  AEBEZHAERIRNE
NEZEBRAEKE - WR—NWNANFENARER -
BER=T=FHEERR -

HEELE =ttt AEETEERES - TR
TE-ZEMARER - HELRFAREERAZT
EEXEEETEN - REFTET=FNRHZTER
ML c MABWERE CRERBEEREEZ
IRK o

EERROREBERD 2EZRAR

R-B-—FZA=+-R  ALTREGEERE
D) EISARTREOBIRER - DIRBCBRAE
% EDRAD( EHRAD K A2 ERRTA
EBETHSRIOEET ) (BEFH ) BAK
AARBRS - SEFEADARAHREE (ER
RGESRMEEODEXVE) HRG RATARY 28
HERAAMT :

REDBEBRZER

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital

EARD R E BT
RAEH =R

Number of
ordinary

shares held
BHEEBER
2R

1 695,412,104 50.3
6,100,000 0.4
RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 695,412,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2021, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited
Poon’s Holdings Limited
BEREZERBRAT

Farrow Star Limited

Pandanus Associates Inc.

Pandanus Partners L.P.

FIL Limited Through controlled corporations
EREHIEE
Note:

Capacity

513

Trustee

SHEA

Through controlled corporation
EZIEHIN T

Directly owned

HEER

EXEHIEE

EXEHIEE

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr.
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominees Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow
Star Limited in turn holds 695,412,104 shares of the Company. Therefore,
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 695,412,104
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

Pandanus Associates Inc. has the entire control of Pandanus Partners
L.P. which in turn owns 37.01% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited is deemed to
be interested in 82,960,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Therefore, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners
L.P. and FIL Limited is deemed to be interested in 82,960,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Through controlled corporations

Through controlled corporations

FTERRRHEMA TR RAEERKROE

8 (4%)

REQBEBRZER

BfaE
1.

Percentage of

Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share

shares held capital
BELZER MGARESRT

BHE RAT 5=

1 695,412,104 50.3
1 695,412,104 50.3
1 695,412,104 50.3
2 82,960,000 6.0
2 82,960,000 6.0
2 82,960,000 6.0

UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited (1E B Sk 15T 19 F
FA o ZIERENIEA LR ) BBAAEAUBS
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road,
He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rents of
RMB1,329,900.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

ARTZBLFPTESE R ETRUFIATHE
ERENARTROFEBERS - LRALZIHE
BB B UL TR ¢

() BAKENREES

BIR—REERRET  REAREENE &%
EXZNERARTER G TRREEBLE=
YRR 5 R

(ii)

ZER G ERIBEEBER S WIHRIRRET - X
SHERDFEE  UHFEARRRROER
Fag o

(iii)

RABZEAIRBEOLZKETHMEBICERERA
EEZHERER S RERTBETMASEAG 2T
B RIS R 300055 BB EM B ERIETER
FERUMILR EEUR S RERESI5740551R
BEBEWRRZHERERS 2 AR A TEH
BE - ZAEHAESBAERAEERE LTRE
SE14A.56R MR IR SCH U T FHERRER 5 FTEH 2
KE BHEARSHERARER ZEREERE
1

TERRNISEBEISFHE
BRETHUEVALOGEE  AEBMEFESE
AR VBATGEZETERENIFEREIZ N
R HRED ©

B —BIEAN LR — Y EEBTEFT T
RZZ-ZZF—-A++tA > AEEHRLUER
BERATTWE ) (HAATANATESR
ERBRREEWELERHRERS)STHE
W AUEARBACRFERETNTEE
STiE282 — 2865 M KB IR EE - 1EA
TEBTERDHEBNTENT > -5
TFEMA—BERHWE  SAHSAARYE
1,329,9007T °

(1)



Report of the Directors EE S 4

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person
On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2020 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person
On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room
4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as a training centre
of the Group and a car parking space at Ground Floor, LMK
Development Estate, 10-16 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$67,240.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June 2021
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2021 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised of six members. The three
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Ting Kit Chung
and Mr. Poon Ho Tak. The three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law
Brian Chung Nin. Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 87 of the Company's bye-laws.

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1)

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group's
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.

Directors’ insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
==
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EWE
Ting Kit Chung TR
Poon Ho Tak HEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu EAE
Cheng Shu Wing e
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s

duties and responsibilities, etc.

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

=

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWIE

Ting Kit Chung THR

Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu B E

Cheng Shu Wing RS

Law Brian Chung Nin EE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit committee (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

(e)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

monitoring the performance of the Group's internal audit team;

considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the
Group.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31

March 2021 to review the followings:

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

the effectiveness of internal audit function;

the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2021 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

BEEZE2H)

EREES(H)

ENZEESTERSAE

() ERBBERENFEE

(b) EERFEAEERBREERANBELRL

(@]

(d)

(e)

EFEAEEABESAZRE

ZRIMNILBEAWEARBE FHFBEARE

BARRR © R

ERAEECRERS URHER -

RBE-ZZ--F=ZA=1T-HILFER  EKER
SRETHRAEHUAFRUT

(a)

(b)

(@]

(d)

REBNEREERNIREEE |

M BRPESIERRE 2 PN

REBNIBEEREZF RMERE R

RELTRABTNSERERS -

BREEENEE_Z-—F=ZA=1+—-HLFER
SRUFETEEHIINOT

Attended/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of office

RERRHE BITERRE

EREEEHRE

Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing LSS

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

5/5
5/5
5/5



Corporate Governance Report S E£ &R &

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and
one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of executive director’'s contract, directors’ fee as well as the
remuneration and performance bonus of executive directors and senior
management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FHESERE

Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing WRHT AL
Law Brian Chung Nin R4
Ting Kit Chung TiEs
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2021 is set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in
this Annual Report.

Further details of the directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2021 are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements contained
in this Annual Report.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee
held one meetings to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience; to review nomination policy for directors and Board
diversity policy; to review and recommend the re-appointment of
directors standing for re-election at the Company’s 2020 annual general
meeting; and to assess independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE

Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Au Son Yiu 23
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; approved the adoption of human rights policy; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year, except for the following deviations:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to one of the executive directors of
the Company. The chairman considers the executive director a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the executive director
has good knowledge in each operating segment of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based
on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they have all complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year.

TREERME
ESRAEMTOEEARE  FAEEESERD

TEER ESETLEETANBECANESSEE
REERBAEEZ2ERY - ZBERITEHERE
DR -

REBE-Z-—-F=Z/A=+-HLEER EEEF
FRkEERDBANEEER LWBERRIES - ESH
BIIRSEEERR - ERMAEBRERERAQ
BAIRARERNETEEE LT RIKESENER -

FEaEEERTRRERZ AKX

REZEWRR  ARAARFMEFE-EFG LHR
BUF %+ PRz EERTRIFFIA TR - T
BUGRSTERSM -

TEEARTAUEI2REEESECEREAS
FEARDNEZBRRBFRE -

EEEIRAHERRAFAS BB RMER
DA-NHITES - TERAZHITESRS
BAE  BZITESHARBESEES B D
o o

EENEHRS
ARRBRWEEFAERS L DNEBETAA TR
5XH2FE - BARAAEES2EN  GEEY
AR B PR B 2R o

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



Corporate Governance Report {+E BRI S

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to upgrade his skills and knowledge.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

R

Audit services rendered B RMETT RS
Review of continuing connected transactions BHFERERS

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 38 to 47.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1)  regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and
(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal

control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down"” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:

The Board
Exg
. Top.-dow-n. ) Sets the Group's
Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation

of risk at corporate level

Responsible for the
Group'’s risk management
and internal controls

Risk identification, assessment and
mitigation

A AR A ERER

objectives, strategies,
polices and business plan

Internal controls embedded within the
operational processes
RIA R ERR 7 NP IR I
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnels and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of INEDs, would
also consider the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
nomination policy and will review and recommend any revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval, when necessary, to enhance
effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power
under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the AGM.

Changes to constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower II, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/ (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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EY:x

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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Provision for inventories
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMESRONMEERRETEE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$2,388,533,000, which comprised of textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved
in estimating inventory provisions. Judgements were
required to assess the appropriate level of provision for
items which may be ultimately obsoleted or sold below
cost as a result of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such
judgements included management’s expectations for
future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was made
in accordance with the policy. We have examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEEHE)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
2 o BROB RN EERRETSEE
Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the underlying data used by management
judgement and estimates, the provision for inventories to calculate the inventory obsolescence provisions by
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 reviewing the inventory ageing analysis and checking,
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements. on a sample basis, the subsequent sales and usage.

FENERESTHBRME - FEREREHKNEBEKRESH ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ“%? PR EREREERER - LARER
REREMEIRRMES ~ 65220 BRUGHEFERERENERRE -

We tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.

BT E BB EER W S E RISt E LU
HTEER

We also assessed management’s calculation of net

realisable value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

BEMTRERINPREE - UTEEEEM TR FEN
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Recoverability of trade receivables

FEWBR X HY AT Y B] 1

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures and the Group's estimation of expected
receivables amounted to HK$946,353,000 and the loss credit losses. We evaluated the appropriateness of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted the allowance of doubtful debts recognised by test
to HK$51,472,000. checking the historical cash collection trend, subsequent

settlements, ageing analysis of the trade receivables
and considered whether the historical loss rates
were appropriately adjusted based on the current
local economic environment and forward-looking
information by evaluating the correlation of market
information used. We also considered the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosure about the degree of estimation
involved in arriving at the allowance amount.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRRETEE®)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREEITER BB RN EERRETSE
During the year, management used a provision matrix
to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) for trade
receivables. The matrix was initially based on the

Group's historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such
as forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this
area because it requires a high level of management’s
judgement and due to the materiality of the amounts
involved.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRENSEE

Tax provisions and contingencies

HERERAAHE

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment of 2005/2006
to 2016/2017. Estimating the outcome of the final tax
position and the assessment as to whether a provision
and the amount of such provision should be recognised
are complex and judgemental, and the amounts
involved would be material to the consolidated financial
statements.

EERBERA(HRDE BEXEFOMBLRAREE-ZZ
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
tax review are included in notes 3 and 32(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ZHBEBRNEEE T HER A RFENABREN RN E
BEBEHRRMTEIR32(0)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFF R NAEEBRERTSHE

Our audit procedures included making enquiries of
the directors to obtain their views on the status of the
review conducted by the IRD and understanding the
process followed by management to assess the impact
of such review. We involved our internal tax specialists
to assist in analysing the Group’s correspondence with
the IRD and considered management’s assessment of
the probability and outcome of the objections to the
estimated assessments or additional assessments issued
by the IRD with reference to other similar cases. We also
assessed whether the Group’s disclosures detailing the
review conducted by the IRD adequately disclosed the
potential liabilities of the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEITER

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”)
REEER B ETS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had right-of-use assets
of HK$530,753,000. The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets for identified

retail outlets that continued to underperform by
estimating the recoverable amount of their right-of-use
assets based on value in use calculation. An impairment
of approximately HK$15,004,000 has been recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2021 to reduce the carrying
amounts of certain right-of-use assets, to their estimated
recoverable amounts. Management considers each retail
shop as an individual cash-generating unit as each shop
generates independent cash flows, which are largely
independent of the cash flows generated by other assets.
The Group determines impairment provision based on
the cash flow forecasts of loss-making retail shops. The
evaluation process is inherently subjective, and dependent
on a number of estimates.

RZB-Z—F=ZA=+—80 FEENEAREEABYE
530,753,000t - AEBMNEEEBBREEAEETEGE
HEAREENTRESHE  BEBERRTENCRESEE
HHERREEETRETG BE-T=-—F=A=+—H
WHERE B ABERNE15,004,0007T » LUGHE LG RAES
ENREERLZHAETAIKRESHE - EEESSETEERH
BE—EBUNBRESELEN  RASEREEEBINRS
FE MREABEEABRELBIRHEHMEEEENRESR
B o AEERBEBEFENRSTAEFARTRERE o T
BREAE FEXEY 0 WHEURRE S5 -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BREEESHHENGNEREREAREEEAEEENE
AN B ESERSMBIRRNMEIM 145 -

BRRETEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFARNAEREFERFFSE

Our audit procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included, among others,
evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators and assessing
management’s significant assumptions adopted, in
particular those relating to the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops, by reviewing the Group’s
business plan, comparing with the market discount rate
and evaluating the growth rate by comparing to market
data. Our procedures also included a comparison of the
cash flow forecasts with historical data of the Group.
Also, we checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

EMEREEENRETGNEARFEE (APEfE) &8
BT A ERFGEAEEEREHEEENHEEERE
RANEZRMR (BHIREBETEERNRSRERAR
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EMOEFEaESRSRSTRREAEEE R BIBETL
B oo tboh - RPVBHRBRE T FTAE A BB ER T AEE
o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E A ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E A ¥R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 22 5B &

Year ended 31 March 2021 B Z —E-—F=HF=+—HIF FZF

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents)

A
HERA
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THRER
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2021 2020
—E-BF k- Sk 33
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT
7,351,573 7,630,306
(5,071,441) (5,191,779)
2,280,132 2,438,527
165,516 143,418
(1,228,761) (1,312,117)
(723,896) (836,655)
(51,745) (116,239)
(30,392) (68,691)
8,838 22,733
419,692 270,976
(145,733) (101,922)
273,959 169,054
274,213 169,054
(254) -
273,959 169,054
19.8 12.2




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZRE 2 HWA X

Year ended 31 March 2021 B Z —E-—F=H=+—HIF FZF

2021 2020
:E—gﬂf — v =L ﬂE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT BEFT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 273,959 169,054
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HipZERA(E8)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that RERHABAIEHRSEE
may be reclassified to profit or BRPVEMEERA(EE)
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINEERBEE
foreign operations ZERERE 264,666 (204,627)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) REEHMEEBA(FHE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX FrFi%FEE 264,666 (204,627)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AEEZERA(EE)EHE
FOR THE YEAR 538,625 (35,573)
Attributable to: 5
Ordinary equity holders of the Company ApEEEkamEE 538,876 (35,573)
Non-controlling interests IR ES (251) -
538,625 (35,573)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Prepayments

Long term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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14
13
15
16
17
22
22

18

19
28

20
21
21

22

18

23
24

25

26
14
23
27

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-EF
HK$000 HK$°000
JBEF T JBIEF T
1,146,482 1,144,341
530,753 617,418
517,995 516,737
28,358 373
33,293 33,293
7,126 48,288
23,752 17,220
93,029 76,149
70,683 74,776
45,241 99,247
39,261 23,630
2,535,973 2,651,472
2,388,533 2,102,440
894,881 712,289
262,320 197,307
893,593 817,045
2,346 56,946
60,653 37,780
1,802 41
1,700,293 1,737,012
6,204,421 5,660,860
858,693 708,400
2,388 1,472
654,320 526,662
194,809 203,468
2,527 419
855,330 1,229,533
304,338 183,589
2,872,405 2,853,543
3,332,016 2,807,317
5,867,989 5,458,789




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt &R R 3R

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Poon Bun Chak
Director

Ting Kit Chung
Director

ERBERE

HitEMIRR R ESTEE 26
HEas 14
EERIEEE 28
HIERBEE

BEEFHE

e

BEAATTERSEEER
BEITIRA 29
i 30
FRAREIRE 10
eI IR AR

HRER

EE

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
14,853 2,236
346,178 426,064
107,205 100,276
468,236 528,576
5,399,753 4,930,213
69,085 69,085
5,192,749 4,861,128
138,170 -
5,400,004 4,930,213
(251) -
5,399,753 4,930,213
EE
THA
EAkELEBRAT —ZT-——F§
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2021 B Z —E-—F=HF=+—HIF FZF

—E-—F

HK$°000
BT

2020
—E-EF
HK$°000
BT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&FEHERE
Profit before tax R AT R 419,692 270,976
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs MsER 8 30,392 68,691
Share of profit of an associate FE(EEEE N RRF 17 (8,838) (22,733)
Interest income FMEWA 5 (27,776) (63,589)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange INESTEEMTIA
derivative financial instruments AREWREFRE 5 (489) (2,731)
Net fair value gain on financial assets BRARBETTABZNEREE
at fair value through profit or loss Ey=Eo] 6 (7,976) -
Gain on revision of lease terms arising R HSENIEE R R & E
from changes in the non-cancellable MEENHEEET RS
period of leases (1,013) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions HAARBZ 1B TIRES
from lessors HENHESRES 14 (25,698) -
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment BREYEDR
properties BB () FHE 6 (1,258) 36,714
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - REKREBINE
equipment 6 236,302 250,180
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 6 227,325 231,444
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEVE MENRBER
plant and equipment Ei8F5 6 2,555 1,737
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 15,004 35,021
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEMR, (s B E)
of inventories 6 (2,145) 39,440
Impairment of trade receivables FEWERFURIE 6 18,084 19,889
Impairment of debt instruments REEHEAAN
at amortised cost B ITERE 6 13,211 19,608
887,372 884,647
Increase in inventories FEEM (112,274) (103,798)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FE U BR 7k K2 SR 538 (224,079) (12,873)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEAFIE - ST REAER
deposits and other receivables BRFURA (45 hm) (80,985) 45,213
Increase/(decrease) in trade and IR R Z55E 00, G4
bills payables 133,853 (95,010)
Increase in other payables and HibEMAIRR KR
accrued liabilities FEsT BB 131,145 43,391
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 735,032 761,570
Tax paid BAFE (32,655) (99,076)
Net cash flows from operating activities REBIRERATEE 702,377 662,494
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z: 8 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2021 B Z —E-—F=H=+—HIF FZF

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net proceeds from settlement of
derivative financial instruments
Acquisition of derivative financial
instruments
Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment
Purchases of items of right-of-use assets
Additions to construction in progress
Addition of debt instruments
at amortised cost
Net redemption of debt instruments
at amortised cost
Net redemption of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Decrease in long term rental deposits
Decrease/(increase) in time and structured
deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired
Dividends received from an associate

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

REFDRERE
ZWFIR
FETESRT AREFHE

BETEESMTA
BEWE  BERREEE

BEFREEE
MEERIR
BERCHBERANEE LA

B RO R A
ERTAFE
BEZEAAEFABEN
TREEFHR
HEWSE - BER
REEBEBA
REPBESRERD
REJX A=EA N LRz
TR AR
A, (150)
U A BRE

REFHRERACRE)
T

METHRERE
HERETEEHH
M ERITER
BEMSIRITER

2AFR
2RE

REEEBRERLFHE
ReRBESEYEM

(B) 8
FHZRERREEEY
SNETHEE

FERZRERREEEY

2021 2020
. i

HK$000 HK$000

BT BT

27,776 63,589

2,155 7,085

(1,298) -
(159,402) (143,659)
- (77,910)
15 (28,756) (380)
(14,583) -

33,866 76,140

66,668 13,576

2,377 1,929

- 6,834

596,428 (544,184)

17 50,000 -
575,231 (596,980)

31 (221,184) (227,515)
31 1,875,157 3,715,103
31 (2.248,637) (4,014,183)
(30,392) (68,691)

(69,085) (345,424)

(694,141) (940,710)

583,467 (875,196)

1,088,828 1,975,982

(23,758) (11,958)

1,648,537 1,088,828

BAEREERLT —F-—FH



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2021 B Z —E-—F=HF=+—HIF FZF

2020
i = e i
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRSEEVERDIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BeRIBITER 24 538,295 849,368
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETZLB=ERREF=
maturity within three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 1,110,242 239,460
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETYB=@ER LU LR
maturity over three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 51,756 648,184
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReERBSEEY
in the consolidated statement of MERERE AR T
financial position 1,700,293 1,737,012
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RETMA=@EA L
original maturity over three months FHf 2 I I E BRI R
when acquired (51,756) (648,184)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRREEEY -
in the consolidated statement MEFRFERESRER
of cash flows 1,648,537 1,088,828
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories;
and

. Provision of franchise services.

Information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

ARREEER
EXEEEERARABFETMRILZER
BEERAR  ADRZFEMHIEE A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ° X EEERR AR T EE
WAEBHRAEAETR22IFNHNBESESSE
—E16%E o

RAFE » AEBTREEUT R

o HEH  WMUORBKZIEHRER;

o  EREHMZTERIHE R

o IRHUESTHEER o

M A R E R
RABZEEMBLRZFHBENOT

Trustland Inc

Nice Dyeing Factory Limited

KERBERAT

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEMH

British Virgin Islands
KBRLEE

Hong Kong

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTLE/
BRTRA

US$18,000
18,000% 7

Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000

EERA
1,000t R
BRERELRA
j8#:3,125,0007T

Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,857,950,000
Garment Limited’
REBKEHHRNERAR HElHEIARE 78#2,857,950,0007T
Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
BKE(RE)BRERLT RERL#EE/BB 127

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KT B ER
ZBHE
2020

2021
—B--F  ZE0FF

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

RAEXRERRLF

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

REER

Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn

HEHBHREY

Production, dyeing
and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn

HEARRRY < EHRER
Investment holding

and trading of machines

REZRREERS

—ERC-FR



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

AL BER
BRI

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
BRERA

B S 2 R E R (4E)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KT B ER
ZBHE
2021 2020

—E-—F CE-EE

—_

——=

Principal activities

TEXK

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BAEBXEERAA BB BT REBERE
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$150,000,000 100 100 Production and sale of
Company (Guangdong) Limited’ garments
ARG (ER)BRAT HE/HEAE 7#150,000,0007T MK EH
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$60,000,000 100 100 Production and sale of
Company (Guangxi) Limited’ garments
AIRE (ER)BRAT HE/HEAE 7#60,000,0007C MK EH
Creative Textile Technology British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Sale of garments
Company Limited Hong Kong
AIRGEBRAR RBRL#EE/BB 127 AR SHE
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
and Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEXERAT BB EBRABEI0TR BEME
ERFEELERE
BT
Winson Knitting Factory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
Company Limited and Non-voting
deferred
HK$1,000,000
BB EBRABEI0TR BENE
ERFEELERE
781,000,0007T
Winlife Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$15,903,100 100 100  Property holding
KETERAR BE 7#15,903,1007T BEME
Baleno Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$20,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong and retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
HEREEERAR REBRL#EE/BE 20,0005 REZRRERK
# 2B E

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Baleno Kingdom Limited

HeBRARAT

Baleno Hong Kong Limited

HeREEERAT

Guangzhou Friendship
Baleno Co. Ltd.’

BEMEER R R ARAR

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno

Garment & Decoration Co. Ltd’

EREFHRERERHERAF

LETARGARAR

Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd.?

RAEDHRERHERAT

Tianjin Dafu Friendship
Baleno Co., Ltd.’

REXENEHRABERAT

Huge Growth Corporation

BEARAE

all

oot

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEW

Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China

e/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

e/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

e/ B AR

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ B A

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ B A

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
RERLHE/HEAE

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
BRTRA

HK$10,000

#1%10,0007T

HK$2

BT

HK$103,800,000

#1#103,800,0007T

US$500,000

500,000% T

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

RMB700,000

AR #700,0007

HK$2,100,000

#1#2,100,0007T

US$1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

AEIREEER (&)

MBRRENE)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KT B ER
PANES
2021 2020
“E--F  CZECER

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

RAEXRERRLF

Principal activities

TERH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BRI TER D #

Retailing of casual
apparel and accessories

ERN 2 TE

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERNE 2 TER D #

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BRI TER D #

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BRI TER D #

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERKENTERD H

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERKENTERD H

Property holding

HEmE

—ERC-FR
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

Information of subsidiaries (continued) ME A mER (F)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
AL BER BRTEE/ KT B ER
EEih BEERTRE ZBHE TEEH
2021 2020
—g--F  -E0EF
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Holding of trademarks
Hong Kong and provision of
franchise services
KWERAT KEEZEHE/ (E FEBERRAST
i RE RS
Successful Channel Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
HEEEE RERLHEE/HEAE 1XE% BENE
1 These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises ! ZEME R ARIEFEEEA MBI EE
under the laws of the PRC. b=
All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by the BRTrustland Inch - BLEPREMIE ARG HA
Company. NRIEESE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERFAVEARDRBZHBERR  EBERRKE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for HAKEAFE 2 EEBRETEFERAMET
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the SEEEFHZ2TEINY - ESRR/FIIEM
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion MEBARSLRERARILE °

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021



2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

FMBRERDBETESHMASEMZES
BEmEER(REMEEBMBEREER
BEREFEARRER) EE-RAREFHR
AR BB A BRG M BEERFERTA © BRI
EW% - BHBEENE  BERRENNE
FROAABFAEBENENEERITESH
EEREBERAAENEI - APBIHRRIIMK
REREASTEGIFTRE - FREEEHN
RUBHRIILGBE (B D2 FAERE
HNBEEAZETFIH -

mEE%E
FEMBEBRREELALDAREWBELG(EHE
[AEEDBE-_Z-_—F=A=+—HLHF
EZBHE - MBARAKRAREERREE
BHNER (BREERMEER) - EAEEYHS
R EHREBNZBHERAIERBZEE
FIAREEEBEIREH RMNE D (MAREEE
BFEEEIUTEREHRERTEHNEER
R FEZZEMET - BEUSIEHIE o

A AR EERBEEEERASBNREY
SRERFOUEFR - AREERTEEEEHE
BHREHSWEIRSZE—IHEBESER
B - B -

(a) EBEREURHMBEZEAMNEGHNR
B

(b) EMENZHAEENER S &

(0 FEENREERETREE-

M B A Bz B SRR TR ERA N B AR 2 RS
HEEA-—HETRRER - MBAR 2%
EEAEENGENRERBFEAR IS
BESSNREZZEHBKLERRL -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(a)

(b)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework") sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after 1 April 2020. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

2.2
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22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"”). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only
to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease that
is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change; (ii)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of
the lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group’s premises have
been reduced or waived by the lessors upon reducing the
scale of business as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and
there are no other changes to the terms of the leases. The
Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 April 2020
and elected not to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic during the year ended 31 March 2021.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments arising from
the rent concessions of HK$25,698,000 has been accounted
for as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the
lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

2.3 Eﬁﬁﬁ?{ﬂféﬂ RERZzEBMHREE

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Insurance Contracts*
Insurance Contracts*’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*®

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use3

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction*

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 413

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

K Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

7 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities
are not required to restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based
on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 March 2021.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a
future period, the Group will apply this practical expedient upon
the modification of these borrowings when the “economically
equivalent” criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which
an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2022. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in an associate (continued)

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties) the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

0]

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Change in values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movement in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from
the revaluation surplus to retained profits.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

24 FESHBERIBE®)

W BERRERTE

Y13 - BB R RE (FRIEE TR IR BAR
RERRFTERBEBEALR - B0
BERRBEREDER/TE  ETERELR
BBUHMELERESTALR - % - BER
REBEEZRABEEBEERSZERES
BN R B EEST B AR PR E L 2 W
BB

1% BERREEERAEBFERZEX - W
HERREBEZER  —REELEHBRERR
IR - MEERIRER - HETEREER
TEBREARFAEREEZEEREE © i
REBHWE - BERRBEATHEER » A5E
BRZBORENEEREVEAFH2EE
WAEHTE o

% BERREZEBEZB I AEEER
REN - ZEREEEE - BREAETZU
HERESSE  BHZBBSEEERAT
B Hig - EAEMBHESTTABER  TA
ZHBURAHBRZEBEERR REEEER
ZEER  ERAGENEENEEEEER
REDOTDEE—AREEE  BREREE
e

EXTERNEERR/RENER  FHCE
HBRRENEEEMHBLREEZZME
HEHESHRE  AREGRBERERER
e

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms of related land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and garment, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and
accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Premises Over the remaining lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(@]

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, equity investments,
debt investments and financial products issued by financial
institutions. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans, borrowings
and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accrued liabilities, lease liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to their fair value, i.e. the
value of the future redemption obligations by applying statistical
techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

(@]

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon
the completion of the relevant services.

Provision of franchise and royalty services

Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
an associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or
not to exercise the option to renew the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Such estimates involve
consideration of the possibility and outcome of the objections to
the estimated assessment or additional assessment issued by the
tax authority with reference to similar cases. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and the
information about impairment of right-of-use assets are disclosed
in note 12 and note 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2021 was HK$27,399,000 (2020:
HK$13,216,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the trademarks. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future sales from the cash-generating units which use
the trademarks and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are contained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group has assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well-known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events or
circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful
lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of trademarks at 31
March 2021 was HK$33,293,000 (2020: HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2021
was HK$517,995,000 (2020: HK$516,737,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2021 was HK$2,388,533,000 (2020: HK$2,102,440,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The carrying amount of trade receivables at
31 March 2021 was HK$894,881,000 (2020: HK$712,289,000). The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

Impairment of debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group reviews portfolios of debt instruments measured at
amortised cost to assess whether any impairment losses exist
and the amount of impairment losses if there is significant
increase in credit risk. The impairment loss for debt instruments
measured at amortised cost using the expected credit loss model
is subjected to a number of key parameters and assumptions,
including the identification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. The carrying amount of debt instruments
at amortised cost amounted to HK$105,894,000 (2020:
HK$137,027,000) as at 31 March 2021 (note 19).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use assets in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Provision for reinstatement costs

The Group determines the estimated reinstatement costs arising
from leasing of properties. The estimate is based on historical
experience of the actual reinstatement costs incurred with
reference to quoted price and/or other available information.
Management will reassess the provision at the end of each
reporting period, taking into consideration of size, shape
topography and the complexity of the structure of each
property. The carrying amount of such provision amounted to
HK$18,334,000 (2020: HK$13,320,000) as at 31 March 2021 (note
26).
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except interest income, non-lease
related finance costs and share of profit of an associate, are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, an investment in an
associate and deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,

tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. EEIEER @)
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to DEBZHERERRZ 2EBNSRETS

= LS E =] =
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then SEZERHSEETE

prevailing market prices.

Production,
dyeing and sale of Retailing and
knitted fabric,yamand  distribution of casual
garments apparel and accessories Eliminations Consolidated

% BORAKZ R

EHRER 28R4 0] e &4
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
S§o-F Z§SRE RS- C9C8F CE0-F CESRE RS- C9C8F C0-F S0Ef

== == == —-<—= -3—=

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
BT BT EBMFn B¥Tn B¥Fn BETn B¥Fn BETn BT BETx

Segment revenue: PERA:

Sales to external customers EFNREF 4643647 4918578  2,704904 2,709,338 3,022 2,390 - - 1351513 7,630,306

Intersegment sales PEEZEE 138,766 53,005 - - 8,361 8164 (147,121)  (61,169) - -

Other revenue EilA ns o B3097 3B 3169 34703 37544 @76 (3981 131740 79829

4854234 5014680 2,738846 2,712,507 46,086 48098  (149,853)  (65150) 7,489,313 7,710,135

Segment results PE%E 566653 539526 (199127) (316,04 42918 (1353)  (19,630) - 300814 213
Reconciliation: Ei i
Interest income FEHA 21,776 63,589
Finance costs (other than interest BB

on lease liabilities) (REEEENEMN (1736)  (37.477)
Share of profit of an associate b 8838 22733
Profit before tax BHanaR 419692 270976
Income tax expense #a (145,733)  (101,922)
Profit for the year REERF 273959 169,054
Segment assets PEEE 5731479 5309955 2,694,430 2,597,492 541,330 825549  (1,435230) (1,380,226) 7,532,009 7,352,770
Reconciliation: i
Investment in an associate REENAZRE 7126 48288
Unallocated assets FOREE 1201259 911,274
Total assets 4sE 8,740394 8312332
Segment liabilities AEEE 1,082,163 859,799 2,040,587 2,017,708 43,894 34,087 (1,097,876) (1,042,873) 2,073,768 1,868,721
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated liabilities FOHEE 1,266,873 1,513,398
Total liabilities aag 3,340,641 3,382,119
Other segment information: EfnEEs:
Depreciation and amortisation ~ HE R 180554 178497 283073 303127 - - - - 463621 481,624
Capital expenditure* BRMER 125,850 75,917 57,386 146,032 - - - - 183,236 221,949
Write-down/(reversal of write- &R,/ (HA%E)

down) of inventories (52,451) 11,306 50,306 28134 - - - - (2,145) 39,440
Impairment of trade receivables EUERZRE 4397 - 13,687 19,889 - - - - 18,084 19,889
Impairment of right-of-use assets ~ FREEENE - - 15,004 35,021 - - - - 15,004 35,021
Impairment of debt instruments at &2 BAAR

amortised costs BRIEHE - - 13211 19,608 - - - - 13211 19,608
Net fair value loss/(gain) on RENEDA

investment properties B/ (538 - - - - (1.258) 36,714 - - (1258) 36714

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BAMSHOETEYE  BERRKE £
equipment, construction in progress and the land portion classified BIRRSEAEFELEN LI o

under right-of-use assets.
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.
Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and non-
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong
2] REKKE A% B
01 00 01 000 w1 0 01

ih 15 & R}
TRALEEBREZE_ZE-_—F=A=+—-HK
—ECEF=A=1+—HIFEZHIFRAR
*RBEEER

Others Eliminations Consolidated
i B &8
2020 201 2020 0 2020 bl 2020

= I s S A S S S S S = S R

== == == ==

== == ==

HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSODO  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSODD  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS000
Bfn Efn EEin EEin EEfn EEin Ein Ein EEin EEin EETn ERTn EETn EETn

Revenue fromexternal ~ PEEFUA

customers 2551595 2636804 3407964 3059365 370066 758480 82151 951378 199797 224279 - - 13158 7630306

Non-current assets FHBEE - - 1,606,087 1,604,266 - - B3 908179 - - (M1 (134775 2287759 2377670

The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets
information, excluding long term rental deposits, long term
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and deferred tax assets, are based on the
locations of the markets and assets, respectively.

Information about major customers

No single external customer (2020: Nil) contributed to more than
10% of the Group’s revenue during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers

WA~ Eabir AR Wz
REAREFTINARHBA
WA DATIT :

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2021
—EB—fF

2020
=t B 25

—_—=—

HK$000
BT

HK$000
BHEFT

Sale of goods HEEm 7,334,433 7,618,673
Rendering of yarn dyeing services AR RS 14,118 9,657
Franchise and royalty income T RE RERUA 3,022 1,976
7,351,573 7,630,306
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHFUAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-ZE-—S=A=1+—HLEE

Types of goods or services

EmkRBESR

Segments

Production, dyeing and
sale of knitted fabric,
yarn and garments

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

Others

Total revenue from
customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong

Mainland China

United States of America

Japan

Others

Total revenue from
customers

Timing of revenue
recognition
At a point in time
Over time

Total revenue from
customers

28

Sale of
goods

HEEm
HK$°000
EBETT

A MY REIKZ

EHRER

BRI

HAth

A PN
#hig S
&8
EEiPN
=E

B

Hith

BEFWASE

LON A

RE— 2
RE—KR

EFWAET

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
REERLY
PR
HK$000
EBETF T

Franchise
and royalty
income
KRR
HFRBA
HK$°000
BT T

Total

a4
HK$’000
BRFT

4,629,529 14,118 - 4,643,647
2,704,904 - - 2,704,904
- - 3,022 3,022
7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573
822,151 - - 822,151
3,390,824 14,118 3,022 3,407,964
2,551,595 - - 2,551,595
370,066 - - 370,066
199,797 - - 199,797
7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573
7,334,433 14,118 - 7,348,551
- - 3,022 3,022
7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573
BAERERRAR —T-—FR



©

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Types of goods or services

EmkRBES

Segments 78

Production, dyeing and ~ #H#i# ~ 1B R M2
sale of knitted fabric, EHRER
yarn and garments

Retailing and distribution {EAR & &%=
of casual apparel and FERDH
accessories

Total revenue from EFWBAES
customers

Geographical markets i T 15

Hong Kong BB

Mainland China PRI K RE

United States of America X[

Japan B

Others Hit

Total revenue from BEEWRAET
customers

Timing of revenue WA FER B
recognition
At a point in time RE—RFE
Over time RE—FER

Total revenue from BEEWAEET

customers

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

5.

Sale of
goods
HK$’000
BT

WA ~ HA WA R U as @)

REEFEFTIMNENNBA(E)

(i) DFUAEHR(E)
BEZ-EF=-A=+—HIEE

Franchise
and royalty
income
HHRER
HRWA
HK$000
BHF T

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
RIEY
AR
HK$000
BT

Total

/_\§+
=N

HK$’000
BT T

4,909,335 9,657 - 4,918,992
2,709,338 - 1,976 2,711,314
7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306
951,378 - - 951,378
3,047,732 9,657 1,976 3,059,365
2,636,804 - - 2,636,804
758,480 - - 758,480
224,279 - - 224,279
7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306
7,618,673 9,657 - 7,628,330
- - 1,976 1,976
7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included

in the contract liabilities at BEREHN
the beginning of the year: e

Sale of goods HEEM
Customer loyalty programmes

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of
the products by the customers. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit and on cash. The
credit period is generally within 90 days.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion of services and customer acceptance,
except for some customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

REF - THEERBA

WA E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

WA ~ EUW AR WS )
RERESTINEHNORA (F)

(i)

(i)

DHFRAER (48)
TRETRAHEHAERLNREHN

MHAEHNEEZWAEEE -

2021
—EB-—fF

2020
SE
HK$000
BHEFT

HK$000
BT

26,639 29,086
5,542 6,659
32,181 35,745
BHEE
AEEBENETEZMOT :
HEE R

BREFERFPEZERBERET -
REFHEFEFNESRRETEURER
RE o RE-RBIOKRRK -

ERRTS

BREEERMRB 2SBEAEIE
17 » MR — AR IRIS TT B R 3 P 12 A
BRETXMN - HEDEP —REELN

=
e

1FATASE REFIWA
BHROEEERMREEREREREIE
17 BEEEBRTARREHRBEATE
IRE - FHEESHUNFHINF—=
M o

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 =& =

5.

—#=H=+-H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For sales of goods and rendering of yarn dyeing services,
the Group does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as permitted by HKFRS
15.

For franchise and royalty income, the amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Within one year —FR
More than one year ZR—F

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year relate to franchise services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within two
years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which
is constrained.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

5.

WA ~ HA WA R U as @)

REEEFITINEHMERA (F)

(i)  FKEXEBEHEF
MHEERRIBEHADRE  AEEL
BIEMAEMENZE R AR EE R
ENE RS REHERASBIBE—F - T
LUIERE BB EEAEISHETS
ERBERRGEXRECHBARERZE
# o

REBFEERERRA - RZBZ—F
ZA=t-BRZEZEF=/A=1—

A BXZEREERNTHENEE
(CRETHEORET

YA

2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-BF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T

414 2,085

1,139 1,799

1,553 3,884
FEHENBE - FEBRIAABWRAZET

fﬁﬁffi‘}i&bﬁ/\ﬁiﬁﬂj&% T4
FRERY - MAEHMBTENELEHE

jﬁﬁﬂvﬁi\\—imﬁﬁmﬁuﬁlk xRz

TRTEEZORZTERE -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA > EWRA R KRS #)
2021 2020
—B=-—F g i 223
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Other income and gains HAn A R iz
Interest income FIEWA 27,776 63,589
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange MESTEERMIAEAAERS
derivative financial instruments (note 23) REA(ME23) 489 2,731
Gross rental income from investment REYELLHSHES
property operating leases ON-CEE| 27,574 22,762
Compensation from suppliers for MR EESHERREE
defective goods 20,553 3,696
Government subsidies* BN Bh R 48,803 2,233
Net fair value gains on investment REWMERAEBERE
properties (note 13) BRI 13) 1,258 -
Sundry income MBI 39,063 48,407
165,516 143,418
# Various government grants have been received from local # 1 T BT W E & BB T o EEIER
governments. They mainly represented financial assistance, JRIAESE B 1 A (Z FHF B B AL WA BB 2
the acquisition of the Group’s new machinery items, which are B BRREEBENIEWER 2 &5
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over the useful BER W0 195 B & 2 FOE A ©
lives of the relevant assets, and COVID-19 relief subsidiaries received. RoE-—F=F=1+—H FEEILXE
As at 31 March 2021, there were no unfulfilled conditions and other B SR 1T 10 BZ BT 78 BD 54 FE B B R JE 7T 1R 1 R
contingencies attaching to the government grants that had been Bt E11E -

recognised by the Group.

BAESEERAT —T-— 5% @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold*

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment?

Depreciation of right-of-use assets*

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’

and senior management’s remuneration
(note 7):
Wages, salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities*

Contingent rents under operating leases

COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors

Auditor’s remuneration

Foreign exchange differences, net

Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment
properties*

Gross rental income from investment property
operating leases*

Less: direct operating expenses (including
repair and maintenance) arising from
rental earning investment properties

Net rental income
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of

inventories*
Impairment of trade receivables*

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

CEEMZ A
WE - BERRETE

ERERERE
E&%

81
B

FFX - BEESM
BEAEME (H527)

T% - HFeERAMZE
RNBRE IR

HER(TEERERER
Zit8)

SERET RS

HIE AR 1 EA RS
RBNELHS

BB

B2 55

BENEALEFE, (ki)
TR

RENFELREASYA
kel

o EREERX (BRERER
HEER)REWERENSE

HEWNFE

FEMR, (KRR )

FEUR AR R *

Impairment of debt instruments at REBERANEBIR
amortised cost* HE*

Impairment of right-of-use assets* EREEERE

Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BRAREFABRENERERE
at fair value through profit or loss* B8/ () F 8

Net loss on disposal of items of property, HENE  BERZHEER
plant and equipment* EEREE

# Cost of inventories sold includes write-down/(reversal of write-

down) of inventories, staff costs, depreciation and lease payments
totaling HK$585,643,000 (2020: HK$571,125,000) which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of

these types of expenses.

* These items are included in the “Other operating expenses,
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.
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6.

BRBE A& A
ASEEZ RBATRFE MR (L) :

12
14(a)

14(c)
14(c)

14(c)

13

21

19
14(a)

2021 2020
—E--F “TCZF
HK$'000 HK$000
BYEFT BEFT
5,071,441 5,191,779
236,302 250,180
227,325 231,444
1,198,189 1,213,552
5,471 7,497
1,203,660 1,221,049
78,854 117,772
208,185 213,485
(25,698) -
2,730 2,700
(6,044) (4,062)
(1,258) 36,714
(27,574) (22,762)
3,177 2,243
(24,397) (20,519)
(2,145) 39,440
18,084 19,889
13,211 19,608
15,004 35,021
(7,976) 20,462
2,555 1,737

EEEYZzHAFEIFZEMB " (#H
BE) BEIRXE ERHEEFN K
JB #5 5856430007 (= E-FF : B
571,125,000 ) IR L5 FEE FHRTAREF 1%

ZERACHAGERE XN Rt EEE
FH o REEL TEMKAR Kas J# o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c¢) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

ESNSREEAEHERAMUES
FMES

EEME

BLEMBA - BB DQBEAGE383(1))
(b) » (ORMERLABREESHNEER) R
PIE=F > AEEXNESME 2 REWT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEH
HK$000 HK$’000
BT BHEFT
Fees: weE
Executive directors HITES 30 30
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES 1,530 1,530
1,560 1,560
Other emoluments: HiE4 :
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIERSER 17,822 24,017
Performance related bonuses* RIBAMRFEAT* 10,715 24,530
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERIRER T EIH 26 36
28,563 48,583
30,123 50,143
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * ARAHTEFZETHEBE LA EEEZ

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
performance related bonuses paid to each director were determined
with reference to last year’s performance of the director and results
of the Group.

HrEE B EFIRE T EOEEBEIEZN
RBHHTEAL o BN GLEEZREHHTE
ARRELFEZEFREREBRE
EE -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

Au Son Yiu BEHE
Cheng Shu Wing LS
Law Brian Chung Nin EEF

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2020:
Nil).

(b)  Executive directors

7. EENEREBAESMARENES
FiNES (@)

BE=MEE)
(a) WBUFHITEFE
REREXNFBEILFATES2EE

mT
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-BF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T
510 510
510 510
510 510
1,530 1,530
RER > UR(ZE-ZTF  B)OBL

FHMITESNHMME -

(b) HITEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e RER E3) RIKEF
ik FREEA HITA STEIfR WemE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT BT BT BT
2021 —E=-f
Poon Bun Chak EIE 10 9,555 6,110 - 15,675
Poon Ho Tak Bk 10 2,229 1,990 18 4,247
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 6,038 2,615 8 8,671
30 17,822 10,715 26 28,593
2020 “ECEF
Poon Bun Chak BEE 10 14,071 13,940 - 28,021
Poon Ho Tak BEE 10 2,424 3,990 18 6,442
Ting Kit Chung THRE 10 7,522 6,600 18 14,150
30 24,017 24,530 36 48,613
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENSAEBEAEMERENVES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID NES (@)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEWE(E)
(b)  Executive directors (continued) (b) HITEE(4E)
As the Group was affected by the outbreak of COVID-19, HRAEEZ 199 ETRESEREN
Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Ho Tak and Mr. Ting T BEWELELE O BHEELEERT
Kit Chung voluntarily agreed to waive their salary of HEEERE Qﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ/ﬂ:u%
HK$5,151,600 (2020: HK$1,489,600), HK$180,000 (2020: Nil) 75,151,600 T (=& = : ,%’.1%-’;‘
and HK$920,000 (2020: Nil) during the year, respectively. 1,489,6007T) * 7B#£180, 00071:(— ==
TF ) RBHI20,000T (ZE=F
F 1 E)
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement MEXFrIIEEEN  WEESHNERNSR
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FHENEIRDENERNHENZ
remuneration during the year or after the year end. HE o
Senior management’'s remuneration SREBRAEME
Senior management’s remuneration for the year was within the AEEEIXNEHREBEAEHMESBRT 5
following bands: :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—ECEF
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 72,500,001 7 £ 78%3,000,0007T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 783,500,001 7T £ 78%4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 79,000,001 £ 78%9,500,0007T - 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7#11,500,001 7T £ %% 12,000,0007T 1 -
3 3
Five highest paid employees huBREHHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three AERAENBRSHFNEERE =L (ZZ2_F
directors (2020: three), details of whose remuneration are set out F=)ES > HEFMFBEEHNU LN E
in “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the remuneration EMEe IR -BRTMU(ZEZF M) &
for the year of the remaining two (2020: two) highest paid SHEMES (HWEARQATES) E’leiifyi%?ﬁ}ﬂ
employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: HEBWT :

2021 2020

:g:_q—: —_ 7 —_ ‘,E*E

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %ﬁ% B R IFEBER 15,580 12,796
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIRKER T 2R 36 36
15,616 12,832

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8 @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENESHEEASHMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FMES (@)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Five highest paid employees (continued) AfuERESHHMES (&)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose REECXNHESESFMNEEMESERT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: DIEE :

Number of employees

EEAH

2021

B —F
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 713,500,001 £ & %54,000,0007C 1 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 75#59,000,0017T £ %£9,500,0007C - 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7B%511,500,001 7T £78%512,000,0007T 1 -
2 2

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEA

2021 2020
—E-—f —E-EfF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T JBHF T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 7,736 37,477
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HEEBERE (KE14(b)) 22,656 31,214
30,392 68,691
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INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

HE
ERFEHERFRANEBRM 2 AT ER
BRFIUBIE165%(ZF=FF : 16.5%) 17
BEE HAEE-RMEATRN  ZRQ
AREEKERTIE %RW&%IJE’J;% A
B2 E) & 7 %52,000,000T (=& =% E ,ﬁﬁ%‘
2,000,0007T ) K FEER B F) M 128.25% (—F =
T 1 8.25%) BB - BT HERBF
HAIZ16.5% (ZE-FF : 16.5%) B R
oo EEHMIERERFERE JHE%FZF%
EEBREEMERIERZRITHENE

Current - Hong Kong and Mainland China: RE-FERPEIKFE :

Charge for the year AEEEE
Underprovision in prior years* EEEREBTR
Deferred (note 28) PRI (f1E£28)
Total tax charge for the year AREERIBET
* Included in the balance of underprovision in prior years for the year

ended 31 March 2021 was additional tax provision of HK$94,250,000
made in the current year in relation to tax affairs as detailed in note
32(b).

2021 2020
==k —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
B TT BETFT
58,227 90,833
95,316 692
(7,810) 10,397
145,733 101,922

* REBE-F-—F=A=+—-HILFEHHF
FEBETEZST IR BEBEFIRY
IR EE32(0) HI Bl BRI EF HYRES B
B /894,250,000 -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. WIE#H)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before ?Eﬁéﬁﬁzﬁ’“ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmgﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁa/i
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the BB ZBRBANER U E EEB R E 2 BiEm
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the ﬁ@i$$§?§;ﬁ§$ﬂ$%ﬁl§ﬂgpﬂﬂ? :

tax expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

2021 2020
—B=—fF g el 223
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax RRBE A A 419,692 270,976
Tax at the statutory tax rates R ERERNTIE 41,938 12,604
Adjustments in respect of current tax of PMEFENEPHERARE
previous years 95,316 692
Profits and losses attributable to an associate FE{LE4E N F)1E3 (1,458) (3,751)
Income not subject to tax BAHR 2 WA (53,850) (51,140)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAMER B &R 33,182 48,629
Effect of withholding tax on the ?ﬁ$$¢@lﬁﬂ§’&ﬁ—ﬂ#\ﬁ,ﬁ
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC SEA R TEII R B S
subsidiaries (3,175) 4,965
Unrecognised tax losses RIERBIIEEE 51,548 88,121
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EEABTHEAZHRIESE (1,384) (685)
Recognition of deferred tax assets on tax EFERBEABIEEEN
losses previously not recognised IEEFIBERER (19,830) -
Others Hith 3,446 2,487
Total tax charge for the year REEHIEBEBEE 145,733 101,922
The share of tax credit attributable to an associate amounting FE (b B ) R B T8 B 15 A 78 158,260,000t (=
to HK$8,260,000 (2020: HK$13,267,000) is included in “Share of EFF B3, 267,000713 BEtAGREE
profit of an associate” in the consolidated statement of profit or w2 EIREE D BRI o
loss.
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10. DIVIDENDS

1.

Interim dividend — HK5.0 cents
(2020: HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share
Proposed final dividend - HK10.0 cents
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZ=ZF | |)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2020: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the
year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

10.

HHIRE - BREBRBE5.01L
(ZZ2ZZF B¥10.010)
BRARHRE - SREERBE10.01L

1.

31 March 2021 —2=—#=H=+—H
IR 2.

2021
—EB-—fF

2020
SE
HK$000
BHEFT

HK$000
BT

69,085 138,170
138,170 -
207,255 138,170

REEFR 2 RBREAFTAD B RRNRES
HITHNRRBFAG LBEB -

BEARNAEEREREESRAR

EREREFNESHENBRARAEBEEZNE
ERLEZFERNRRZFACHETEER
1,381,696,104f (ZE=FF : 1,381,696,104
BR) Z P REGTE -

FRARBE-B--F=A=F-BR=%
—EF=A=1-ALFENLRERITOE
ETSIRBENLER -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. 9% BEREE

@®

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

By HERTRE

HK$'000
Vi

HK$'000
BEFT

Plant and
machinery

BEREH,
HK$'000
BEFT

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
i REBR
WAZRR
HK$'000
BEFI

Motor
vehicles
and yacht

RERER
HK$'000
ERTr

Total

Ak
=1

HK$'000
E¥Tr

31 March 2021 “B--§=fA=1-H
At 1 April 2020: RZZ-ZEMA-R:
Cost or valuation BASGE 1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERAE
and impairment (736,571) (842,477)  (2,438,560) (215,726) (84,505  (4,317,839)
Net carrying amount REEE 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
At 1 April 2020, net of RZE-ZFMA-R-
accumulated depreciation ENREHTERAE
and impairment 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
Additions RE - 48,003 64,099 38,421 3,957 154,480
Disposals RE (47 (16) (3,383) (1,356) (130) (4,932)
Depreciation provided during ERITEERE(HiL6)
the year (note 6) (41,59) (56,098) (111,857) (18,998) (7,753) (236,302)
Transfer from construction in EQRRIRIS)
progress (note 15) - - - m - m
Foreign exchange adjustments MNERE 29,741 3,572 49,820 3,941 1,050 88,124
At 31 March 2021, net of R=Z--%zZA=t+-R"
accumulated depreciation ENRESHTERAE
and impairment 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
At 31 March 2021: R-B=-fZA=+-H:
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment (836,499) (922,416)  (2,666,367) (219,160) (96,090) (4,740,532)
Net carrying amount REFE 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
Analysis of cost or valuation: HARSEE -
At cost A 1,226,401 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,873,412
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-ANZE=A=1-H
1&E 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. V¥ BERRKRE®)
Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
Buildings improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total
B £BR
BT HEETEE BEREE BAERGE  REREE ait
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT
31 March 2020 “E-EE-fA=1-H
At 1 April 2019: RZZ-NENA-H:
Cost or valuation BASREE 1,200,264 921,777 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5,721,575
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (739,350) (861,398) (2,497,897) (217,957) (81,325) (4,397,927)
Net carrying amount REFE 460,914 60,379 732,070 47578 22,707 1,323,648
At 1 April 2019, net of R=Z2-hnEmA-A-
accumulated depreciation ENREHRERAE
and impairment 460,914 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,323,648
Additions RE 16,821 50,049 54,904 16,258 5,627 143,659
Disposals EE (602) (223) (1,987) (2,369) - (5,181)
Depreciation provided during FRITEERE (L)
the year (note 6) (44,269) (65,660) (115,575) (15,014) (9,662) (250,180)
Transfer from construction in BRERIR(MHI5)
progress (note 15) 528 - - - - 528
Transfer from investment ERRENEWL3)
properties (note 13) 12,486 - - - - 12,486
Foreign exchange adjustments MNERE (30,472) (2,154) (44,683) (2,365) (945) (80,619)
At 31 March 2020, net of RW-E-ZF=f=1-A"
accumulated depreciation BHNREGHTERAE
and impairment 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
At 31 March 2020: RZZE-EF=/=1-H:
Cost or valuation BAHER 1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (736,571) (842,477) (2,438,560) (215,726) (84,505  (4,317,839)
Net carrying amount REFE 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEED
At cost RA 1,138,375 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,448,578
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-AAZ$=A=1-H
fbE 13,602 - - - - 13,602

1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180

BAEEEERLT —S——5H @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In the prior year, a building with a carrying amount of
HK$12,486,000 was transferred from investment properties to
property, plant and equipment since the date of change in use.
Such building was revalued at the date of change in use based
on a valuation performed by the directors with reference to the
value of adjacent properties at an aggregate open market value
of HK$12,486,000 based on its existing use.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$1,407,000 (2020: HK$1,843,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE
REVERAERE(FE)

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment

properties (note 6) EEE(HEE6)

Transfer to owner-occupied properties EEETHRWMEMF12)
(note 12)

Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE

Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

12.

13.

M BERSEE @)

REE > —BREERBY 12,486,000 THETF
HNBAZEARARENEEAYE BE
REE - ZRFENRESSBIMEMELIRE
BERAZNEZRAZAZEEEHZEARTS
B{E;8%12,486,0007T °

HRPHREETHREFER - AN_FES
VEEMAEMETERS c AEBBE—ANZ
FR WEHEEEIHRETEE-—SE
HiEE AAEEREBGHENE165HY
¥ FERZERSAEBEMEKR  BRB
HE L ERBEEARNYE  BERREES
RAERBIEEM - MZEHE T HRETFIRE
ERARBTINEER  HIREAEBEENASB
#£1,407,0000 (Z === : #B%1,843,000
TT) e

REWHE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-BF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT T
516,737 565,250
1,258 (36,714)
- (12,486)
- 687
517,995 516,737




13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$517,995,000 (2020: HK$516,737,000) are situated in Hong
Kong. The Group’s investment properties consist of 12 (2020: 12)
industrial properties in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of one
class of asset, i.e., industrial, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2021 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer. Each
year, the Company’s board of directors decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

13. BEWXE#®)

BRTE{E B8 #517,995,000T (=4 :
#£516,737,0007T) (IR EVEMREE o 74(%
?ﬁﬁ%%@%&%iﬁ%bz@l?ﬁ%?(:
ToZF D 12M8) c REBESREYEZHE -
BERER  AEEERLIRENER—&
EEERIARK B TEETF -

RIBZ-HF=A=1—-H UREBNKRE
VEBHBEREXRER 2B BMERITET
Eff - BEARRZESEREEAIDME
R EHAEE 2 RENMEETIMNIEE - B
REMzBEENETSAH B8 - By
REEDHERBRRE - AEE 2 BRI
BERRRAEEREF - ARNERFEVHR
REFER(LBREITEIR ©

REMEDUEEROBETE=E - FHER
BRI B R4 -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REY=@)
Fair value hierarchy AREZER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAPREEREVEN DI AETFESR

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021
R-B-_—F=A=+—HWAARETERH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BARA

RE R ATEEHN BEN

TG HHRE BWABE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%E5—#%) (%E=#&%) (=) wmEm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
BYFT BYFT BETT BT

Recurring fair value BMUTEEEEN
measurement for: ARERE

Industrial properties T¥EF - - 517,995 517,995

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-2-2E=A=+—BNAREHERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BAARA

AR AIEERN BEN

TiZHRE WA BE [P ¢
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(55—%) (=4 (B=4) azg
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BHEFT BT T BT T

Recurring fair value AT RN
measurement for: ARETTE

Industrial properties THEETF - - 516,737 516,737
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13.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2019

Transfer to owner-occupied property

Net gain/(loss) from fair value
adjustments

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020
Net gain from fair value adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2021

REZB-NFENA-BEREE

DRERERE (BER)2E

SNERE
R-Z=ZBF=ZA=+—AK

—E-EFMA-BEREE
A REFAEWR TR

R=B=-#=A=+-H
fREME

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

4B %

Income approach

Wik

Industrial properties
located in Hong Kong:

UREBNIRET:

Direct comparison
approach

BELEE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTUBRENGAZE

Estimated rental value

(per sq.ft and per month)
e BEGFIRRES)
Market yield
mElEE

Unit market price
(per sq.ft)
BEUDSEEFIR)

31 March2021 —&E=-—#=H=+—H
BEWHEE)
DREZRE)
¢m’%—&£%—ﬁ2ﬁiﬂ&ﬁaﬁ@%

ENER FERKE-RBARLER(ZF=

Residential Commercial Industrial
property property properties
EEWE [EE2-E£S IHEF
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT MFT M

12,486 44,774 507,990
(12,486) - -
- (45,461) 8,747
- 687 -
- - 516,737
- - 1,258
- - 517,995

LT BIREVEGEMBNGEER R ERH
ABIBHHIE

HK$6.3 to HK$22.0 HK$6.5 to HK$24.0
BH63TEBH2.0 6.5 281 24.07
3.0% t0 3.8% 3.0% to 4.0%
HK$2,600 HK$2,450
%#2,6007T #&#2,4507
RAERETRAT —F-—FR
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The market rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rents are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the investment properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
market yield, which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take account of
the valuers’ knowledge of the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment
properties.

The key inputs were the market rent, the market yield and
the estimated cost to completion, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties and a significant increase/decrease in the market yield
and the estimated cost to completion in isolation would result in
a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Direct comparison approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, shape,
view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively,
to arrive at the market price per unit.

The key input was the market price per unit, which a significant

increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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REMFENTSHESRILBEYRREETHHN
MSWERFELERL - HHEETIURE
YIEMFE LB S R EAKSTE R HEE
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TIRA - MRAHESEBREEM HD
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
and premises used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of premises
generally have lease terms between 2 and 25 years. There are
several lease contracts that include variable lease payments, which
are further discussed below.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

the movements during the year are as follows:

14. #HE

FEBEREBEA

REEER

TR LK
K

EEBREANSERE T 1
BFENEESRE - EAHMET — IR
EAREZLHEENKRRESHEHERR20E
SOFMAE L - I B MA
E-REB2Z2FWHEY - B -LBHEH

7 - BFH

SHENNEESRE  TEEE-DHH -

(a)

EAEEE
EENERAEEERAERFAZEN

Land Premises Total
T BF ast
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—-HIFNB—H 44,316 634,358 678,674
Additions Hri 77,910 222,582 300,492
Depreciation (note 6) e (mate) (3,759) (227,685) (231,444)
Impairment loss recognised EERZRERE
(note 6) (Hiite) - (35,021) (35,021)
Lease modification FER=L - (69,660) (69,660)
Exchange realignment & H A% (508) (25,115) (25,623)
As at 31 March 2020 and R-B-ZEF=H
1 April 2020 =4+-—gR=-E-%
FMA—H 117,959 499,459 617,418
Additions g - 127,894 127,894
Depreciation (note 6) T (f576) (4,699) (222,626) (227,325)
Revision of a lease term R R #EsE VR SRR
arising from a change in BEmMEENHEHER
the non-cancellable period Hi
of a lease - (5,201) (5,201)
Impairment loss recognised ERERZRERE
(note 6) (Hzt6) - (15,004) (15,004)
Exchange realignment [E W R 193 32,778 32,971
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZBE-—F=H
=+—H 113,453 417,300 530,753
EkEREFRAT —ZT-—F#K
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31 March 2021 =& =

—#=H=+-H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s management identified
certain retail shops of its retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessories business which continued
to underperform; and estimated the recoverable amounts
of the corresponding right-of-use assets. Based on these
estimates, an impairment loss of HK$15,004,000 (2020:
HK$35,021,000) was recognised during the year to write-
down the carrying amount of these items of right-of-
use assets to their recoverable amount of approximately
HK$33,817,000 (2020: HK$460,442,000) as at 31 March 2021.
The recoverable amount of the items of right-of-use assets
is determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a period of the remaining lease terms. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is ranged from 10.5% to
13.5% (2020: 10.5% to 13.5%).

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—AREE
New leases HEE
Accretion of interest WARIE

COVID-19-related rent concessions

14. #BE#@)

REBEREBANE)
(a) EAEZEGE)

(b)

HEARAM 19 BRFES

from lessors HENESER
Payments (NEN
Lease modification/revision of leases HEBMR B HEN

term arising from changes in the non-

cancellable period of leases HEBF
Exchange realignment (& 5 R

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into: A
Current portion FEERER 4D
Non-current portion REAER (D

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

HEHREFMELN

R=A=+—BRHEE

RZZB-Z—F=A=+—H  £xEEE
BEEEHERKGYZSERDHE
BHER T ETRREBETENTER
o WEEEFEAREENTRES
o REZEMT  REAFREER
ﬂ@%ﬁ%émwmmmmu_q_

: #5#35,021,0007T) » LLi§E L
EFME%EIEE WEREEMRZE =
Z—FZRA=+-HWAKESEY
B #533,817,000C (ZE-_FF : B
460,442,0007T) - FAEEEEENA
Bk SERREFEREETEREN
DEABENTERERRERENE
B ZBRSREFEIENRERGEE
EAPRMVEITETEE - EARRESRETEA
WITRREES10.5%E13.5% (==
—ZE 1 10.5%F13.5%) °

HEEE
HESEREEREZHNT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECE2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEF T
629,532 737,721
127,894 222,582
22,656 31,214
(25,698) -
(243,840) (258,729)
(6,214) (71,174)
36,657 (32,082)
540,987 629,532
194,809 203,468
346,178 426,064
540,987 629,532




14. LEASES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E
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1 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

The Group as a lessee (continued) REBEREBAE)

(b) Lease liabilities (continued) b) HEEBE#E)
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEAFEZE A DA BRRMEEI7
37 to the financial statements. R E o
As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the RIEMBRRMEA22HE > AEEE
Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 BERMNE BB EEDNE 165 (B
and applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent IR RANEREAEER JITHRE
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain BAREABIEEMENEBARRME
premises during the year. BEFEERNEHHESESR -

() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (0 REZPEREHETEN2EEUT -

are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEEERE

Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEERE

Expense relating to short-term leases and ER4EHRIEE K RISAEEHR
other leases with remaining lease terms Z—ZEZZTH=A=+—H=HZA
ended on or before 31 March 2020 KItCHMBESHERENER

Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE

Variable lease payments not included in AT SR TEIE
the measurement of lease liabilities EHEEENStESR

Lease modification/revision of leases HESKR AT HHENE SRR
term arising from changes in the BEMELENEES
non-cancellable period of leases

COVID-19-related rent concessions 195728 RS ER A SRR

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBFEFEAELIES

2021 2020
S5 8L
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT
22,656 31,214
227,325 231,444
78,854 117,772
15,004 35,021
208,185 213,485
(1,013) (1,514)
(25,698) -
525,313 627,422

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of retail stores and units in
shopping malls which contain variable lease payment
terms that are based on the Group’s turnover generated
from the retail stores and the units in the shopping
malls. There are also minimum annual base rental
arrangements for these leases. The amounts of the fixed
and variable lease payments for the current year for these
leases are HK$243,840,000 (2020: HK$258,729,000) and
HK$208,185,000 (2020: HK$213,485,000), respectively.

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2021. The future undiscounted
lease payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts
are HK$2,616,000 within one year (2020: HK$25,154,000)
and HK$5,748,000 after one year but within five years (2020:
HK$63,562,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Group entered into a ten years lease agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to lease a factory in the Mainland China at a
monthly rent of RMB400,000, subject to adjustments.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio
and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. These
leases generally have lease terms of two to four years with
an additional extension period of two to three years. These
options were not included in the measurement of the lease
liability as of 31 March 2021 because it is not reasonably
certain that the leases will be renewed.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to
the financial statements.
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AEEEREBA ()

(d)

(e)

()

W&
FEBEBYPORNEAETHZEER
BAREBRSEEHMBY P OMNERN
EENEEBESENTEESERIBHRR
NEEEHMEN - EEHEMERE
WEEERHES R - Eﬁb#ﬁlafﬁﬂxi
ERANEEMATEHERES B AB
#5243,840,000 Tt (ZE =& $ el
258,729,000t ) K 7% #% 208,185,000 7T
—EFF : B#213,485,0007T) °

FEER-_ZE-_—F=A=+—HEH
AFEBHNEERESEH - EETTH
ﬁéﬂ’ﬁﬁ%AﬂE’Jfkﬂiﬂi?ﬁiﬁ#ﬁffrklﬁ—
FREHBH2,616,000T (B2 :
7B 1£25,140,000T) » —FRERFR
BB¥E5,748,000 0 (B2 F | B
63,562,0007T) °

HREHRE  AEBRBIE=FHEHT
AHTENHEERS  ~EERZEUA
e AR¥400,000T (TEAR)EE
AP B R BEIR ©

FEBELDEECHRERNEES
B - BLEEEREEEHENRERE
BEHEEEASNEREN  XEEMT
HEAEENEBER - ZEHAONHE
EFH-RAMEDNSF - WrTLAFAIMNE

RME=F - AR RESEREHE

SEMEN - HUEERERD RO
W-®-—F=A=+-ANEEER
HEET -

HERSRHAECIHENRTEREM
F£31(c) °



14.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting
of 12 industrial properties in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$27,574,000 (2020: HK$22,762,000), details of which are
included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

14.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

HE®)

KREBERHEA
AEERBECEAERHBLEBETVRE BN
NREIFEEFREYEHTE13) - BOK
M- RERAFEBIRIFSRREER
FERTSREMELESAR - XE@MNE
AR 2HS WA BBEE27,574,000T (=8
ZZE : #B%22,762,0000T) - FHEBERGH
TG o

R-ZZEZ-5=ZA=1—-0  FEEREHREHK
MER M 2 A HSHEEE 2 RRGEEWAEE

MR AMBERDT

2021 2020

SE —zo2s

HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Within one year R—FR 16,004 14,595
In the second to fifth years, inclusive R ZELF(BREERWE) 12,419 15,416
28,423 30,011

BAESEERAT —T-— 5% @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

At beginning of year REZD
Additions NE

Transfer to property, plant and

equipment (note 12) (KaE12)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMNERE
At end of year RER

16. TRADEMARKS

AR BREE

Cost and carrying amount

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademarks are allocated to a group of retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories cash-generating units for
impairment testing.

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The recoverable amount of the trademarks was
equal to the future royalty savings resulting from ownership of
the assets.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

BEYE  BERRME

15. EEIRE

2021 2020

—B--F =

HK$’000 HK$°000

BEF T BT T

373 528

28,756 380
(771) (528)
- @

28,358 373

16. B

2021 2020
—EB-—fF

—E2-ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT

33,293 33,293

ARER AR ES E R TR AR ZE
BNERTERHELERSFRA -

EREAFHBRRNRENR
BAERIEEZERRGN < ZERTHER—A
REeEEBEMERERNR

ERERAFHBENEESFUENETEE
BRESREBABHENTFREREMST
BRZAKESEAENEEZEEMTEN
RIREFE -
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17.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

TRADEMARKS (continued) 16. BHE@®E)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives ERFERAFHEENRERRE)
(continued)

The key assumptions, royalty savings rate, sales annual growth ARERERFRREFEREIRNEIER
rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the annual impairment BNEFBHEE HEFERERBAIME
testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives are as follows: =T

Royalty savings rate BHREHEXR 1.5% 1.5%
Sales annual growth rate HEFERER 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate FAIRLIR = 11.5% -14.5% 11.5% - 14.5%
The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate FTANEEFIERRATEABEMNEFHFIER
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and Z WHERUEFRBEREEBHTSEERN
management’s expectations of market development. FEH] -
The royalty savings rate used is with reference to comparable FTANSERNEHERDSRER—REAZE
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers EEMIXNNOLLBEFEERIEBEERNEE
typically pay for the use of such assets.
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks Fr BRI BEIR 2R TH LAY I s BR AR R EE A (45 E /R
relating to the relevant units. 5 o
The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with ABREFEBBNEEEIIMEEANRRE L -
external information sources.
INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REEERTZRE
2021 2020
—B-—f b b 323
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Share of net assets EhEEFRE 7,126 48,288
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BeENT2ERNT

Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation attributable
issued shares held and business to the Group  Principal activity
SR K FEEELES
BFENERTROER EEh BfRE EEER
Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50  Dormant
("Megawell”) China and Vietnam
BESHBARAB(TEED EER &8/ PE AR B TES

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8 @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17.

The Group’s shareholding in Megawell comprises equity shares
held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Megawell is a dormant company and is accounted for using the
equity method.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's associate that is not material:

REE QR ZRE #)
AEMNEENRREESBAAA 24
BEHBLATSERAES - BEA—TEHL
AW IR E AR o

TREJEAREEMSALFEANBE QT2
BEEER

Share of the associate’s profit and total AEEREHE QT
comprehensive income for the year ffﬁﬂ&%@”ﬂl)\
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment REBREERNT 2

in the the associate RERHEE
Dividend received 2R E

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18.
PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
==t =
HK$000 HK$°000
B TT BEFT
8,838 22,733
7,126 48,288
50,000 -

BARERABRSNEHMEE

2021 2020
—E-—% —E-%f
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Financial assets at fair value through RAREFABENESREE

profit or loss

Unlisted investments, at fair value FLEMRE  BARE 73,029 131,722
Less: non-current portion W ERENER D (70,683) (74,776)
Current portion mENEBLD 2,346 56,946

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2021 and 2020
were investment products issued by financial institutions. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

19. REBEREAWEL TR

Debt instruments at amortised cost RE#EREANERITA
- Hong Kong —-&BE
- Elsewhere —Hithith &
Less: accumulated impairment o RETRE
Less: Non-current portion W ERE IS
Current portion mENER D

The debt instruments at amortised cost represent investments in
listed debt instruments, with fixed interest return.

The investments had an aggregate nominal value of
HK$175,198,000 (2020: HK$191,202,000), and bore interest at
rates ranging from 4.50% to 8.75% per annum (2020: 3.54% to
8.75% per annum). The amortised cost of the debt instruments at
amortised cost was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.

The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments
at amortised cost are as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BHEFT
93,722 89,874
79,080 100,850
172,802 190,724
(66,908) (53,697)
105,894 137,027
(45,241) (99,247)
60,653 37,780

ZROCHBERANEBTASRENEGEER
BEHz EHEBIA -

ZERENEFEESRBM175198,000 7T
(ZEBE=ZZFF : #%191,202,0007T) » FF
EHA50%ZE8T75% (= E-FF : 354% %
8.75%) - RE A ANEHE TA S #EH
RANTEDIRNBRIANSEREACEEN
A& BILSEEEABRAREENRE
REeFHINPASBE o ZHNRT BB ET
% o

REOBMERANEE TARERENEE N
T

At beginning of year REXD
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) REEBER (K76)
At end of year RER

2021 2020
—E=—fF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT JBE T
53,697 34,089
13,211 19,608
66,908 53,697

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 =& =

19.

20.

21.

—#=H=+-H

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)
Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost is provision for certain individually
impaired investments of HK$66,908,000 (2020: HK$53,697,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of HK$73,052,000 (2020:
HK$64,246,000). These impaired investments relate to debtors
that were in financial difficulties and were in default in interest
and principal payments and most of the balance is expected to be
irrecoverable.

The impaired debt investments were considered to have high
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the year
was therefore measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
losses. The increase in the loss allowance was due to a debtor that
were in default in interest and principal payments and its credit
risk staging was reclassified from stage 1 to stage 3.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress E=8m
Finished goods SR m
Consumables ERMH

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEWERFR
Impairment WA
Bills receivable EWEE

The carrying amount of bills receivables approximated to their
fair value as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and
the expected credit losses as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were
considered to be minimal.
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19. ROBEREANERIE @)

LR R ANEE T ARBERETE
?E**JFE@B R {E Y2 75 8566,908,000 7T
(Z==F : #B%53,697,0007T) Eﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
BREI{E A 8%73,052,000 T (ZE=_FF : &
#64,246,0007T) - ZEZERENREREHR
BERARENBERERZEBITEENERE
SRE BRI ASHHEELINE -

BEEKREFESAASEARAR  HitR
FRAERNWBRBRERRENREFHRNERE
RWEHETE - BABEENEHMER AR
RRABMAEZ - HEAREMRIERAEE
REHMDEEE= IR -

7E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
B TFT JBHF T
881,550 770,218
175,937 111,441
1,196,204 1,093,001
134,842 127,780
2,388,533 2,102,440
EWERRERE
2021 2020
—F=— q—: — 7 —= q—:
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
946,353 745,677
(51,472) (33,388)
894,881 712,289
262,320 197,307

BREENRAEEAR S —FR -2
§$:H:+—EIE’J”R/‘DE$E o HAT et
SEBBANEARRTMEN - R2F2=—
E&——;——\»E A=t-BRWRHEERE

RFERMARE
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$51,472,000 (2020: HK$33,388,000), is as follows:

90H K
90H K k£

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year REXD
Impairment losses (note 6) WIEEE (fite)
At end of year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type and coverage by other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

21.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

EWRR R EE (&)
AEEEFIEEMA ERAE IBIRER
90K | HREE ARG RS AREA
EEETRS - AEEYRERTESE—ER
HESHENEREERR - ARAEEER
EREEBRSES  ALUESAMEEESD
R o A B E A H W IR A SIS
IR RS E AR THE A 2 AR o ERERE R
e o

RI|EMR - WBEFEEPRMFBRBERE
51,472,000t (=2 =24 : B%33,388,000
TO) B ZBEBIRAR AR AT AT

2021 2020
—E=—fF —2-BF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
846,068 670,617
48,813 41,672
894,881 712,289

FEWCERFUREIB R BB E BT

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
33,388 13,499
18,084 19,889
51,472 33,388

REIRE B HRBBEAEREETRED T A
EXRHBEEEE - BEXDREBEARELUSE
B2 Z @R F 2 3AR B B2 (AR
B - EmENURAMEREARRZE
EHEZD)FE o WERERREAZME
HR EECHBEERNRBEEHHBES
H -~ BAIARR R ARREEIGA TR IES 2
BRAERER - —RM = - B SRR
BHER-FRBAZRNBEITEDAT
LA

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. BEWERRERE @)

®

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

As at 31 March 2021

T XEPIE R E B T E A B 2 YR
AREEERREER

BREEH 2 TERDH

R-ZB-_-H5=B=+—8H

Past due
28
Less than Over
Current 90 days 90 days
=8 DH0K HiBI0X
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEBEER 2.43% 0.03% 66.10% 19.44%
Gross carrying amount IREZE
(HK$°000) (BHFT) 1,525 169,574 71,073 242,172
Expected credit losses FEHEERE
(HK$°000) (CB#FT) (37) (56) (46,982) (47,075)

As at 31 March 2020

R=B-®F=A=+-H

Past due
2EH
Less than
Current 90 days
=8 DRI0K
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEEXR 0.01% 0.03% 81.48% 20.72%
Gross carrying amount BREAE
(HK$°000) (BT T) 90,153 30,047 40,948 161,148
Expected credit losses BHEEEE
(HK$°000) (CBHEFT) (12) (10) (33,366) (33,388)

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments:

As at 31 March 2021

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

R R B ()
SHEBA RO R ZEERER

21.

R-ZB-—5=ZA=+—H

Past due
2EH
Less than Over
Current 90 days 90 days
=4 DRI0K HiB90K
Expected credit loss rate JEHIEEEER 0.00% 0.00% 15.10% 0.62%
Gross carrying amount IREREBYEFT)
(HK$°000) 537,481 137,581 29,119 704,181
Expected credit losses FEHEERE
(HK$°000) (BEFT) - - (4,397) (4,397)

As at 31 March 2020, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$584,529,000, of which the expected credit loss was minimal.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FER -

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

B SEREER D

Less: non-current portion:

- long-term prepayments —REFEAMRIE
- long-term rental deposits -RHSES
Current portion RENER S

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. In the situation where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach
with reference to the historical loss record. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent historical of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Al & K H b R U AR R

R-ZB-SE=A=+-0 KHEHR
ERMBERANBREREALERSES
584,529,0005% » £ TS B ATIERMR 2
;Eo

22. FEMNFE - T REMERIRR

2021 2020
—g=—% —z-%F
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT
1,010,374 910,414
(23,752) (17,220)
(93,029) (76,149)
893,593 817,045

ReERAMERERERTRIEHERERAETM
R zEZEE - WEEBBEEEETRZTE
EBARZBERT - ASEELBHIRTCEER
BEREUMTTRREERE - ZBBRRETH
B BRE AT R S AR SR AR (A )
ZHH - CEETLABRENSREERTH
REENNBHNEYERRRER R =2F=—
FR-ZZRF=Z A=+ - HNBERBBWEET
ERWMTRE -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

23.

24.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHIESH
Assets BE
Liabilities =R

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$489,000 (2020:
HK$2,731,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBITER
REIZH=EAREHz
EHER

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original
maturity within three months
when acquired

Time deposits with original
maturity of over three months
when acquired

EHER

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$453,242,000 (2020: HK$457,122,000).

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.
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REIMH=EA A LEIHZ

TEERMTA
2021 2020
—E=—fF —B-F
HK$'000 HK$000
EBETT BETT
1,802 a1
2,527 419

AEECHITZEIRASHHREFERNE
HPESGHNUEBEERRR - RER - B
BERPMEOFEEHIETEBEBENAR
EESABH489,000T (ZE-ZF | Bl
2,731,0007T) °

RERALEEY
2021 2020
—B=—fF i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT R T
538,295 849,368
1,110,242 239,460
51,756 648,184
1,700,293 1,737,012

RIERR U EAEBREEUARBEE R
£ RIBITIF B HEA53,242,000C (=B =&
1 ;8%457,122,0007T) ©

ARBRPERETEARSGEBEY -
RIBEPEARENIESEROIREE - EER
NEEEAE  AEEEEEBEREETIH
EEBZRITEARBRBRBHMEY -

RITFRRES BRITERFRREUZ B S =X
FE - ERREBUERZERBR —FHU
T BFAEEZNBREFRME WS
EHERRERBEFRFIRERRFL - RITE
RREMREBEERENEERIFARIT -
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. FEFERE
2021 2020
—B=-—F b et 23
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
Trade payables FEATERTX 858,693 708,400
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEER > REZ AP ZESIRIERE DT
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: T

2021 2020
S5 —z-2sF
HK$000 HK$°000
BT T JBIETF T
Within 90 days 90H R 769,962 690,687
Over 90 days 90H K L 88,731 17,713
858,693 708,400
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RBEHR  EBHRFBFEMER —REBIOX
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. HYBRER o
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HtENRAKREFEE
Notes 2021 2020
Kfat —EB-—fF b St 23
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBETT BHEFT
Other payables HAb IR 214,628 227,000
Deferred government grant IEFE B Ha B - 22
Accrued liabilities EETEE 417,383 256,375
Contract liabilities BHEE (a) 18,828 32,181
Provision for reinstatement cost EERAEHE (b) 18,334 13,320
669,173 528,898
Less: non-current portion W IEREI S (14,853) (2,236)
Current portion TENES D 654,320 526,662
Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest- HitENIRMRE TRABERIEWE - BF
bearing and have an average term of three months. BRRAA=EA -

BAESEERAT —T-— 5% @
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31 March 2021 =& =

—#=H=+-H

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

Advances received from customers WEEFETH
— Sale of goods - tHEHD
Customer loyalty programmes EFE B E

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programme reward points. The decrease
in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2021 was mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers
in relation to the sale of goods and decrease in customer loyalty
programme reward points.

The movements in the provision for reinstatement during the year
are as follows:

26.

Hitb B RRF K EET RE (@)
Wiz :

(a) R-F--—FR-ZF-FFZFA=F+—-HZ

BHEEFEUT -

2021 2020

— 7 —= q—:

HK$000 HK$000
BMTT JBETT
14,534 26,639
4,294 5,542
18,828 32,181

BRI EEBEEBTEBKERZZHAENZ
BREFZHAEzEEES - REE=
T FEZ A=t —HIFFERAEHNEEEAT
B TEHRBEELSEES l/ﬁ(EJZZ;’FI
B S EERL RES BBt Ez 5

BR B EE

(b) EBERIBREFAZBUAT -

HK$000

JBEFT

At 1 April 2019 R-E-NFEHE—H 9,916
Addition during the year FERFTIE 3,404
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 Ro-BE-_FEF=ZA=F—HAR-F_ZFTFNF—H 13,320
Addition during the year FFE 6,415
Utilised during the year FEREH (1,401)
At 31 March 2021 R-F-——F=H=+—H 18,334

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements
entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by the Group’s
management with reference to historical reinstatement costs and/or
other available market information. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

RIF A BB 5T 7 A9RGB AR 170 - A8
ARIEEEER ER RS REE YR
EEHRBERRA o K EEABRETIRIE
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MIERITER

Effective Effective
annual annual
interest rate Maturity HK$'000 interest rate Maturity HK$000
BRERN=E BERFRI=
BT (%) ZI8A BEFT
Current E
Bank loans-  #R{TEF - 0.49-0.53 Within 1 year 855,330 1.45-2.89 Within 1 year 1,229,533
unsecured Fisig il or on demand or on demand
R-FRAFRER R—FERFRER
2021 2020
—s-—% —EoEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFGERE
Within one year or on demand R—FRFIRER 855,330 1,229,533
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, all bank borrowings are in Hong RZB--FR-_T-ZTF=F=+—-H" f
Kong dollars, RMB or United States dollars. BRITERGRBE - ARBSET -
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s banking facilities RIB--—FR_TZBF=F=1+—H K
were supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and EEMRTEENBAALATARETHOHB LT
certain of its subsidiaries. EHEER -

BAESEERAT —T-— 5% @
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. RIEBIIE
Deferred tax liabilities REEHBEE S
Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of ~ Depreciation allowance in
the Group's PRC excess of related
subsidiaries depreciation
REENTENEAT HiHHEAEERN
THARRRINANHE RERHE Hith
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SE--Ff 202§ ZRC-F ZBCRF -R--F ZBCRF “¥--F CFICZR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETrn  BETrn  BETm EETn B¥Tn BETn E¥Tn BETr
At beginning of year READ 93,833 88,868 (721) (721) 7164 6,208 100,276 94,355
Deferred tax charged/ ERRERERS
(credited) to the B/ (ML)t
statement of profitorloss ~ EERE(H9)
during the year (note 9) (3,175) 4,965 10,054 - 50 956 6,929 5,921
At end of year RER 90,658 93,833 9,333 (721) 7214 7,164 107,205 100,276
Deferred tax assets BEERBEEE

Unrealised losses

Loss available for

on derivative offsetting against Right-of-use assets
financial instruments future taxable profits and lease liabilities
fTESMIA IREEHAR RAREER
FERER ERBRRINER HEEE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SB--% CZCRF CZBC-F CZCRE CBC-F CTCTE ZB--F CTCRE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr  B¥Fr  B¥Tn B¥Tn BEFn EETn BETn BETa
At beginning of year READ 63 - 13,216 18,099 10,351 10,703 23,630 28,802
Deferred tax credited/ ERRERERRML/
(charged) to the (3B MEERE
statement of profit or loss (fre29)
during the year (note 9) 238 63 14,183 (4,883) 318 344 14,739 (4,476)
Exchange realignment ERAR - - - - 892 (696) 892 (696)
At end of year RER 301 63 27,399 13,216 11,561 10,351 39,261 23,630
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$549,481,000
(2020: HK$556,240,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$766,593,000 (2020: HK$659,242,000) and in Taiwan
of HK$95,501,000 (2020: HK$132,017,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which losses arose for a maximum period of five years and ten
years, respectively. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$503,608,000 (2020: HK$476,143,000), HK$687,273,000 (2020:
HK$659,242,000) and HK$95,501,000 (2020: HK$132,017,000)
arising in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, respectively, have not
been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries for which no
assessable profits are expected to be generated in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary difference totaling HK$229,904,000 (2020:
HK$237,148,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above items can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. At 31 March
2021, the Group did not have unprovided withholding tax (2020:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

28.

31 March 2021 —E=-—&=H=+—H
ERERIE (7)
thim\%}ﬁ%izmlﬁ%?ﬁ%%%
549,481,000 T ( — T T F : B ¥
5%2mpmﬁ)’§%E$mE%ﬁWﬁﬂ
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?ﬁfﬁfﬂfﬁﬁ B &2 EER =
o REBNPEAERSEEEZHIEEIE
D Bl 5 B ¥ 766,593,000 T (ZE-FF : 8
%659,242,0007c % 78#95,501,0007T (=
—ZE  B¥132,017,0007T) - HEEER
IBEIE R A B T fE AR E 18 AR B B
EESREFR T FRNERBEF - HRTE
HZEMB AR RERTEEEERS S
*J RES PEARERAEEEZHIEER
B &8 %5503,608,000T (ZE-FF : B
476,143,0007.;) $##8687,273,000T(—E =
T 1 B#659,242,0007T) K B #95,501,000
TT(ZEZZF : B%132,017,0007T) KIIELE
HEEEWMETRER -

18 R FL A 5T 8% 229,904,000 T (ZE-FF ¢
237,148,000/& 7T) (AT HR T A M ZRE R TR TR
EERIBEE  EARKRATKIRESAE
A LiliE B fRERRUER

RIEPEREFAERE  PEIKENINERSE
ARMIFTREESIRNKREZRE10%FEH
BIE - ZERAZZTNF-A-BRBER
TEAR-ZZLF+T-A=T-HREEN
A - S FREETRBE - ERERDBRE -
HEHAERERTEAEARBHE - BAR
REBIBER5%K10% o AL AEBFZ
ERFERERINMBERARB -2FNF—
A—BENERFDIKNREARNHENSE
F-R=FBEZ-—F=ZA=+—-8H" Zlﬂiljtﬂ
ABRENBE(ZZ-ERF  H)

ARFEMERRKEZRE - WEEHEFE
BRFEHZBRR
RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: SETE :
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B#£0.057T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B#£0.057T

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company's shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of an
associate, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020.

The Group’s capital reserve represents the difference between the

consideration for the acquisition of non-controlling interest and
the respective carrying value.
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29.

30.

A
LR

2021
—s—_s

—_—=—

2020
S=L

HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BT

2,000,000,000% G IR &

100,000 100,000

1,381,696, 10412 R E1E

69,085 69,085

i
FEERNAFERBEFENHBESERLT
ZRBLINGARSRBRA o

HEARBRDE-—AN-F EHATHNEAD -

FEECBHBEBAR AR ECRITREAZHE
EFTWEME A RRWE R 2B RITRAE
Bz=5-

AEBCCI AR BV EREERFEIFBEM
BY > RER - —FARENEBSHE
B RERSSRE AT - HkEE—
BMENTEENEE  NESNEEREET
FHSER B —FE=A=+—-AK=F
—EFE=A=1+—HA%E%110,648,0007T °

REEPRA R EEVIE SR RERNER
HIREEZBHEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. #ZARE&EREXRME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions () FEFBELRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to RER  AEERYENHEEREM
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$127,894,000 O OMERAEEEREEEEZHE
(2020: HK$222,582,000) and HK$127,894,000 (2020: SR D B 5B % 127,894,000 T (=
HK$222,582,000), respectively, in respect of lease TZTF  B%222,582, 0007_5)&7%
arrangements for premises. #£127,894,000 T (Z = F : B
222,582,0007T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) RMEIDELEZEEEH
Interest-
Lease bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
M EERITER
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE-hFHNUA—H 737,721 1,528,613
Changes from financing cash flows METHELE2E (227,515) -
Interest paid classified as financing ERRNES EARE
cash flow BeR (31,214) -
New interest-bearing bank borrowings i 2$R{TE R - 3,715,103
Repayment of interest-bearing EEHSRITER
bank borrowings - (4,014,183)
New leases HEE 222,582 -
Lease modification HEB® (71,174) -
Interest expense FEZH 31,214 -
Exchange realignment & H R (32,082) -
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 E@_g_ ZF=R=+—-HBRK
—E-ZFNMA—H 629,532 1,229,533
Changes from financing cash flows METBEEZEH (221,184) -
Interest paid classified as financing NS EARME
cash flow HER (22,656) -
Repayment of interest-bearing BEMBRTER
bank borrowings - (2,248,637)
New leases HiEE 127,894 -
Revision of lease terms arising from AR ESE R SRR EEm
changes in the non-cancellable EENHEEBT
period of leases (6,214) -
Interest expense FEFH 22,656 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions HIEAREZ 195 EBHRES
from lessors HENESRER (25,698) -
New interest-bearing bank borrowings i 23R4T &5k - 1,875,157
Exchange realignment E R 36,657 (723)
At 31 March 2021 R-EZ—F=ZA=+—H 540,987 855,330

BAEEEERLT —S——5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. Z8HERERMT (&)
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 HEBRLSRHEAZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement BENEERERTPHER SR LA
of cash flows is as follows: wr

2021 2020
—B-—F —EEHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
EETFT BT T
Within operating activities KETEEN 309,695 362,471
Within financing activities RIEESEEIA 243,840 258,729
553,535 621,200
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HEEE
(@) Atthe end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not (@) MBEHR  UTHEEERRIHFR
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: FehiE

2021 2020
e .
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REBADEREZ
property rental deposits RATIER 4,115 4,892
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment from 2005/2006 to
2016/2017.

Details of protective tax assessments issued by the IRD to
certain subsidiaries of the Group:

Protective tax assessments

31 March2021 —&E=-—#=H=+—H

32. HBEAE@

(b) BEEBBER (BB EAEMBHKE
ARRHR-BERH/ZEEAE-E
—NCE— L RREENRSEEES
B o

B3 o) AN SE B ED 40 P /B ) ) 3 HH VAR
MERRAEEE

Tax reserve

PREE MBI B certificates
Related to the year of assessment Year and month of issue Tax amount purchased
BRFEBEE BHEMRASG ERHE CHERSSSE
HK$’000 HK$°000
B FT B FT
2005/06 March 2012 69,125 4,500
“EER/ BTN —E-=F=§
2006/07 March 2013 189,000 31,500
S - —z-=%=§
2007/08 March 2014 388,878 34,000
ZEEH/ZEEN —E-FE=A
2008/09 March 2015 376,200 38,000
—EENZEZR —E-HFZ=A
2009/10 March 2016 323,648 38,000
- —E—XE=f
2010/11 January 2017 237,600 50,000
L e
2011/12 January 2018 183,745 7,090
=B/ —Z2-N\F—-A
2012/13 April 2018 and January 2019 175,049 46,069
—E-/=F-= E-N\FNBR=ZZE-HIEF—A
2013/14 April 2018 and January 2020 502,200 166,320
—E-D/=F- —E-N\FNAR-E-EF—A
2014/15 April 2018 and November 2020 250,680 82,500
—E-W/—E—H —E-N\FNAR
—Eo2Et—f
2015/16 April 2018 230,400 71,710
—E-RH/ZFE—R —E-N\EHmA
2016/17 April 2018 129,628 49,808
—E-R/ITE—t —ZE-NFMNA
3,056,153 619,497

The directors of these subsidiaries believe that there are
valid grounds to object to the tax claimed. Subsequent to
the objections filed, the IRD agreed to hold over the tax
claimed completely subject to the purchases of tax reserve
certificates.

In view that the tax review is still in progress, the outcome
of the case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the directors of the Company
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
the financial statements.

ZEMBLARESHEATNEEME
B RRHRE - RIBHREE - B
RREZEEBNEIHR - HLEE
BB o

HRBRBBRDEETT  EBHIE
RNGATHE - BEXRBBHRERZE
B ROBESAAABBIHRERS 2B
HBET R -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. ERMEE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end REBENRERRGUTEAE L HFAE :

of the reporting period were as follows:

2021 2020

—E=—fF —B-F

HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT

In respect of property, plant and equipment, F¥I% - BEKRRE @ 2540

contracted but not provided for BRZRE 22,669 18,669
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAEXXRS
(@)  During the year, the Group had the following related party (@) RER > FEEZETUTBEEALR
transactions: 2

2021 2020
S5 ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYFT BT
Rental expenses paid to MEEQ R
related companies HEEA (i) 19,293 23,280

Note: Mt -

(i) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which (i) B HR L TEERAERHG
certain directors of the Company are also the directors BERPEAEZHE L A EERE
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’ & BEFIHRIZHNFL 0 ZERE
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain REEREmRRIBALEzZEH
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors EF - EFZRBEAZHLIREH
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on BELE#FTHZ TS BISET o 114
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the CEEFZHLEACE AT RESZH
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’ 20 WFIIRUBIREMZLT

quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286
Bin Jiang Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as
a retail outlet for the retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent
of RMB1,329,900. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$13,572,000 (2020: HK$18,065,000).

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease a property located at 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s
quarter of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.
During the year, the Group paid to Latex operating lease
rentals in respect of the above property of HK$4,800,000
(2020: HK$4,000,000).

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong as a training centre of the Group and a car
parking space at Ground Floor, LMK Development Estate,
10-16 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong from WLEL for a term of two years commencing from
1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$67,240. During the
year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals in
respect of the above property and a car parking space of
HK$807,000 (2020: HK$758,000).

31 March 2021 —&=—

F=H=1+—H

34, BEALRS #®)

(b)

RZZ-_ZFE—HF+tH REBEHEWL
EEBRERLTA(LE D (BAEATMN
BOTEERERRREWELELER
B)ETHERZE > OUEABEMLRSP
Bl R ET M BB 828255 — 28695 HY
REEIRGEE - (EAEEEERK
ﬁ*#@z" ROHEBNSENT A
—ETFENA-BRAEWE B4
HEH ARH1,329,9007T o RARE
miﬁﬁt§;¢@¥mm§§z11i<<<**$ﬁ‘a
L HBH13,572,000c (ZE_FF :
FB#518,065,0007T) °

R-ZZE-ZTF—-A++tH FxEBEH
YEFEB)ERAA(ZED (BAEA
AHTESERERBRREWERLESR
BEER)STHERE M BEHEN
REBZEALAEBE2ENYE
EAAEB-—EEBEE2RA AT
—ZFENE-HRBANMWE A
£ 578 %400,0007T ° ARE - REE
Ry EnLELIAFEEHRERS
7B #54,800,000T (ZE-FF : B
4,000,0007T) °
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NAHTESRERBRREWEZELES
EHER)EITHERS - mkiEERHE
BRI REREFTR2ILHHEES
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ALk —ENRE B REBFEER
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T EHERSB%807,000T (=&
—Z4F : jB#758,0000T) ©

RAEXRERRLF

—E——

FH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 =& =

—#=H=+-H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(0

(continued)

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Sonway Enterprises Limited (“SWEL"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Ting Kit Chung, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
lease a property located at 3/F, Ernest Court, 27 Ngan Mok
Street, Tin Hou, Hong Kong from SWEL as a director’s
quarters of the Group for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$38,000. On 1
July 2020, the tenancy agreement was early terminated.
During the year, the Group paid to SWEL operating lease
rentals in respect of the above property of HK$114,000
(2020: HK$456,000).

Rental expenses paid to related companies also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the
section of “Details of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the remaining
rental expenses paid to related companies which constitute
continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits EHEEET

Post-employment benefits BB zER

Total compensation paid to FEEEABR
key management personnel Eaiy pokc

The key management personnel of the Group refers to the
executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.
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34. BEALRS #®)

(b)

(@]

(#&)

R-Z-ZF—-A++tA REHHE)E
HEEEERLAR(IERE]D (BERQAH
TESTHIERE2EHAE)STHAE
% 0 EIERABEBREREEH275
KZENE  EALEBNESES -
H-ZE-ZENA—HE A&
SRAEEHHB®38000T - LML
RIZBEZZBFELA—REELKL - RE
F > $$E¢LL¢@¥HJIIEEBZW§*£
HERSEE114,000T(ZB=FF :
456,000 °

EEEARSZANESERATER LT
RABUAENIFERS - RIEERE
EEREANTERENZERERS
HEI-EN BRTEEELARXEN
HEBATERIE EHRAE14ATR
EEHRRRR  AERBIIRRAEN
BHERERS °

FEBETEEEASHH
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECE2F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
30,097 50,107
26 36
30,123 50,143
AEENEEEEASNRATNBIT
EERBUFPITES -

EEMEFRERNMBRRMEET -
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets
2021

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long term rental deposits

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

2020

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long term rental deposits

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

IR
e
BENBHIE  T2R
SRR
SRAE
HEBEARNESTA
EAAEH AR
SRAE
EHELES
QeSS
ReRRLEEY
att

FEW AR
RRRE
BERANHE T2k
HitEWIRAA 2
EREE
REBHERANERTA
YA N E )
EREE
ROEEES
RERREEEY

2t

35. RERAIMNEMIA
REESHF  SESMTAREENT :

SREE
B —F
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BARERA  REBHRX
BRHNEMEE HEMEE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BYTFT
- 894,881 894,881
- 262,320 262,320
- 692,969 692,969
- 105,894 105,894
73,029 - 73,029
- 93,029 93,029
1,802 - 1,802
- 1,700,293 1,700,293
74,831 3,749,386 3,824,217
—EEF
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAREGA REEHEEAR
BaNemERE HEMERE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE T BETFT BT T
- 712,289 712,289
- 197,307 197,307
- 699,025 699,025
- 137,027 137,027
131,722 - 131,722
- 76,149 76,149
41 - 4
- 1,737,012 1,737,012
131,763 3,558,809 3,690,572
BAERERRAR —T-—FR
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31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 35. REEESHNEMIAm

®

Financial liabilities =R
2021 —E-—F
Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost
RE#H
BRARETA FRA Y
BENemas SRBE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables FEASERR - 858,693 858,693
Bills payable BNEE - 2,388 2,388
Financial liabilities included BIEREMENERR
in other payables and accrued Erathzemas
liabilities - 391,291 391,291
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeREE 2,527 - 2,527
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2RITE R - 855,330 855,330
Lease liabilities HEaE - 540,987 540,987
Total ast 2,527 2,648,689 2,651,216
2020 —E-EE

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss

BEARETA
BRNESRAs
HK$'000
BT T

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE#H
ARASHY
THasE
HK$'000
BT T

&5t
HK$'000
BT T

Trade payables FEFBRFR - 708,400 708,400
Bills payable ERERE - 1,472 1,472
Financial liabilities included BENEMENIRIRR

in other payables and accrued FEitatrhzemas

liabilities - 494,459 494,459
Derivative financial liabilities TESREE 419 - 419
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 84817 &2k - 1,229,533 1,229,533
Lease liabilities HeEas - 629,532 629,532
Total &t 419 3,063,396 3,063,815
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Financial assets SRIEE

Derivative financial instruments fTEEmIA

Financial assets at fair value BN REFTABRN
through profit or loss SRIEE

Long term debt instruments at REIRSESHRAN
amortised cost BXIA

Financial liabilities SRIEE

Derivative financial instruments PTHEESBMIA

36.

31 March 2021 —E=—#=f=+—F
ERMTRAZAIAEER
AEBERTAZEREERAAE(REES

HARBAREMBEE 2SI AR HIm
T :

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE

2021 2020 2021 2020
—B=—fF —EEF —E=—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B F T BT T BT T
1,802 41 1,802 41
73,029 131,722 73,029 131,722
45,241 99,247 45,632 95,261
120,072 231,010 120,463 227,024
2,527 419 2,527 419

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and

cash equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, short-term

debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, bills

payable, interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial liabilities

included in other payables and accrued liabilities approximate to

their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of

these instruments.

EEECHMRERASEEY  BURIR
RS - SRR CBERANELTA &8
EREMATOR - TERAMERERRAN 2 S/
BE  BARK  BARE - MRRITERK
BENEMENERIREFEBERAZEREE
MOAEERERAERS  TEARUETA
HBIE FHRE -

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8
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36.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the Board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
Board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated based
on quoted prices.

The fair values of the long term rental deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. Their carrying amounts
approximately to their fair values. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
March 2021 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.
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=t - BARMERTERNE & TEORERE
FERTEK -

REBHES ZHF(TRRESRMBB) T LITE
ERTE - {fTESRTIA(BERMMNESH)
B A EMUR AT EENEER UG ERI
T8 - ZERABESEDSUBERARE
BEHFNEEER  NENDNHRERER
KA RR - BHIESONIREEREKEN
AVELE B



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=+—H

36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. SRMTEZAREBESER@®E)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRIPAEENESHTEN
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: &
Assets measured at fair value: BRAAEGTENEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021
REZEB=—F=ZHA=+—HHQAEFERA
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RER EPN EX
S GIf o240 TR
HE WARE WA

nEHE

(E—4R) (FE=#) (=) k)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000

BT BYTFT BYTT BEToT

Derivative financial assets TTEEMERE - 1,802 - 1,802
Financial assets at fair value BN REFTABRN

through profit or loss SRIEE - 73,029 - 73,029

- 74,831 - 74,831

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-ZB-_ZEF=A=+—HWAAREFEERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HRERR BXR B
i TREYN  TUBEY

HwE BABUE WABIE

(F—4R) (=) (=) #azE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

BT BHF T BHF T BT

Derivative financial assets TEERERE - 41 — a1
Financial assets at fair value BARETTAEBZN

through profit or loss SRIEE - 131,722 - 131,722

- 131,763 - 131,763

BAERENERAE —T-—FH

s
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: HALETER

36. TRTECZAAREBESER@E)

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021

R-B-_—F=A=1+—HWAAETEHRA

Derivative financial liabilities

PTTEEREas

TEEREE

Derivative financial liabilities

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
AER
TIBH
HRE
(B—4)
HK$°000
BT T

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BX
AEEN
WARE
(=)
HK$°000
EETFT
2,527

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

BX
TR
L7PN ¢:1

(B=#)

HK$'000

EBETFT

gy
HK$’000
BEToT
2,527

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020

RZB-EE= A=+ - BNARETERA

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
ISR
Gl
HRE
(B5—#%)
HK$°000
BT

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
BR
AIERESHY
BAHE
(BB=#%)
HK$000
BT

419

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

BR
TRIEEH)
AR
(€=
HK$'000
BEFT

#zE
HK$’000
BT T

419
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 3e.

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group had no
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2020: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=+—H
SMIBZAARBEZER @)

BALETEBHER W ()
R-EBZ-—F=ZF=+-HAR=-Z-Z2F=H
=t—B AEBUERAAEBHNEE=H2
ERTAE -

R cRHEEREMEBEYETMALAES

E"—ﬁ&ﬁi””_i&ZFﬁE’Jiiﬁé C ERE=R
BAREH(ZZ-2F | #)

BHRERTENEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021
R-B-—F=A=+—HNARETERA
Significant Significant

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

TATERR
58
HwME
(B4
HK$'000
BT

Long term debt instruments at REIZE SRR
amortised cost BTA 45,632

observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
B BX
A[EREM AR
A B LTPN ¢:
(=) (E=8) b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETFT BT T BT T

- - 45,632

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020

R-B-ZE= A=+ - HNAREFTERA

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

AR
358
HwE
(55—4)
HK$'000
B F T

Long term debt instruments at REIZCEEHRAR
amortised cost B ITA 95,261

Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
BR BR
AR TAIEERHY
BWAZER BARE
(BB=#) (BB=#) #zE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BT T BT T

- - 95,261

BAERENERAE —T-—FH
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash and
bank deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivable, trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group'’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

2021 —E-—F
Hong Kong dollar B
Hong Kong dollar B
2020 —EIEF
Hong Kong dollar peed
Hong Kong dollar peed

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 52% (2020:
57%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 30% (2020: 25%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

37. BIXERAMEEEEREE @)
FREMR(E)
THREMTEEEHEEMEENERT » &
EENBRBANER RS H AR T RORE
BE (BY TSNS E) G o

Percentage

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before
tax and equity
BRBLAD
AR

i, R
HK$°000
BT T

point of

interest rate
increase/
(decrease)

FEEHHEH
#hn, Od)

1 (12,356)
M 12,356
1 (15,016)
Q)] 15,016

SNEE R RS

FEBFEXSEBRAR  ZEBRRELEE
LLAGGZEE I ThEEE ME AN o B AT SR E SRR
B8 o REENS2% (ZTFFE 1 57%) ZHE
TS B IR EB N BB EE - [
#30% (ZZB =T 1 25%) 2 AT LA EE
IIhEEE LN 2 BHELEE o

RAEXRERRLF FH

—E——
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

37.

BRRABEEBEERBE @)

SRR ()

TREBRTRRERR - EREMAERMEZE
BIERT - AEBEHBRBIATER R AL B R
FHEERTENARYERSH (HNEY
MEEMBERNARENEE) B -

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before

tax and equity

Increase/
(decrease) in
HKD/RMB rate

Bl AR BRBLA
B AR R
CRi2) 2, 0A)
% HK$000
BE BT T
2021 e
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB THEMEARKERE 1 1,046
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A R¥ FHE (1) (1,046)
2020 —ECEF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B HARBRE 1 1,134
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A R FHE (1) (1,134)

@

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, long term rental deposits and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

31 March 2021

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

37. BIXERAMEEEEREE @)
EERR(E)

BAER R ERTEER
TRESIREAEESEREZEEEERE
AEERB(EEREAHEREL  BER
thERTEBEREFUEREREH 2 1ER
TESE) UR-E-—ER-E-ZTEF=A
SH—BAZELERBRON - 252 2EAS
REERIEEE -

—E-—-f=ZH=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
EH
FEBR AEAEHEREEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-EBR FoRER S=ER ESeEX me
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BEFr BEFT EBETT
Trade receivables* FEURBR RN * - - - 946,353 946,353
Bills receivable rkw= 262,320 - - - 262,320
Financial assets included in BRERBEMRE -
prepayments, deposits e REMAEK
and other receivables BRRAZERMEE 692,969 - - - 692,969
Debt instruments at amortised cost & #8R Ay
BEITA 99,750 - 73,052 - 172,802
Long term rental deposits REHESZRSE 93,029 - - - 93,029
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEZEEY 1,700,293 - - - 1,700,293
2,848,361 - 73,052 946,353 3,867,766
BAEREBERAT —Z-—5R
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

31 March 2020

37.

BRRABEEBEERBE @)

EERRE)
BRABRR FRAEER (E)

Lifetime ECLs

AEAFHENEEER

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EIMER  F=ER BEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MTT BETT BETT
745,677
- - - 197,307

|

|
~
B
y'l
[2)]
~
~

- - - 699,025

- 64,246 - 190,724
- - - 76,149
1,737,012

- 64,246 745,677 3,645,894

12-month

ECLs

1218 B

FE A

FEBE

Stage 1

F—EER

HK$'000

BEF T

Trade receivables* PEUS BRFR* -

Bills receivable EERE 197,307
Financial assets included in BIERTERRIE

prepayments, deposits AR EAMmEK

and other receivables RRAZe@MEE 699,025
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1% T #8454 By

EXITAR 126,478

Long term rental deposits RPHESES 76,149

Cash and cash equivalents RERASEEY 1,737,012

2,835,971

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts
and bank loans. As at 31 March 2021, 100% (2020: 100%) of the
Group's total borrowings would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On

demand

BRER
HK$'000
BT

31 March2021 —&E=-—#=H=+—H
37. BIXERAMEEEEREE @)

FRED R
AEEEBERFBRITEIRIRTERUGEE
AESHEEMREZIMENSTE K=
——H=ZA=+—H  AEELERN100%
(ZEZFE 1 100%) BR—FREH -

FEERBERRNERNEE  REFRER
AT EBIERBENT

2021
—E-—F
3to
Less than less than Over
3 months 12 months 1 year Total
=2
=@EAUR +t—@ERAA BB—%F &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT EBE¥Fr BETFT
855,890 - - 855,890
769,962 88,731 - 858,693
2,388 - - 2,388
305,130 - - 391,291
2,527 - - 2,527

60,385 147,872 418,881 627,138

Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2$R{TE -
Trade payables FEATRRTR -
Bills payable FEfT & -
Financial liabilities included in BIENE A ETIRR
other payables and RETERERZ
accrued liabilities SRIBE 86,161
Derivative financial liabilities THEeRAas -
Lease liabilities HEaE -
86,161

1,996,282 236,603 418,881 2,737,927

(0]4]
demand

RER
HK$°000
BT T

2020
—s-%E
3 to
Less than  less than Over

3 months 12 months 1 year Total

=

=EAUA +=@AR EB—F a%

HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
BT BT BETrT BT
1,230,197 - - 1,230,197
690,687 17,713 - 708,400
1,472 - - 1,472
334,223 - - 494,459
419 - - 419

66,285 170,571 601,702 838,558

Interest-bearing bank borrowings K E$RITE R -
Trade payables FEATERRX -
Bills payable eI -
Financial liabilities included in BEREMESIRR
other payables and accrued REFEERZ
liabilities EWAans 160,236
Derivative financial liabilities THEemas -
Lease liabilities HEEE -
160,236

2,323,283 188,284 601,702 3,273,505

RAEXKEAFRLE —T-—-F8



©

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2021 —E=-—#=F=+—H

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

B AR
kR - RERBEEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity HRER

Gearing ratio (times)
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BRRABEEBEERBE @)

BEREE
FEBEREEENBAAEBEERSENSZ
HEEh  ANBAKENEREEDES U
EEBERMEESIRADE -

BEEBERONERELRE - REFTLER
AEHRRKEHVRE - MRRBBEEAH 3
THRUARSIARELREE -REE-R
T-FZA=t+-RARZEIRFZ=A=1—
BLLEER  EXAEENER  BERREFL

REBEREFEBELRERER  EXEE
LERZNBRERRESENRNEMNEER
PROVRERSE - AEENBREHEERER
BELERREEKTF -

2021 2020
—B=—fF —B-F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BB
855,330 1,229,533

(1,700,293) (1,737,012)

(844,963) (507,479)
5,399,753 4,930,213
0.2 0.1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RHBARZRE

RBEE
ANRER £
RERREEEY

BRBEE

RBAE
HitE SRR B & E

REBEEFHE
BEFEE
FE
BEATIRA

TG =)
BRRER S

g

38.

R BRI T

RATRBEBR 2P BRRREBNT ¢

2021 2020

—E=—fF — e

HK$'000 HK$'000

EBETT BT

2,198,444 2,267,007

201 201

352 348

553 549

152 135

401 414

2,198,845 2,267,421

69,085 69,085

1,991,590 2,198,336

138,170 -

2,198,845 2,267,421
RAERMEWAT —B=—FH
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

39.

COMPANY (continued)
Note:
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

38.

NGRS OELE )

Het -
AR EHEHEUT -

Capital
redemption Contributed Retained
reserve surplus profits Total

(&S
R HARK RE =T mE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T BT T
1,695 48,708 1,581,978 2,335,746

- - 760 760

- - (138,170) (138,170)

1,695 48,708 1,444,568 2,198,336

- - 509 509

- - (69,085) (69,085)

- - (138,170) (138,170)

Share
premium
account
B
B AR
HK$000
BT T
At 1 April 2019 R-Z-NENA—H 703,365
Total comprehensive REEEZEBALLLZE
income for the year -
2019/2020 interim dividend —E-hZBE
FEPHRE 10 -
At 31 March 2020 and R-BZEF
1 April 2020 ZA=+-BR
R-E-SFmA-A 703,365
Total comprehensive TEEZABRALE
income for the year -
2020/2021 interim dividend B /" —
FEFHRE 10 -
202072021 proposed —EoF /-
final dividend FERRARBRE 10 -
At 31 March 2021 R-B=—F
=ZA=+—8H 703,365

1,695 48,708 1,237,822 1,991,590

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 18 June 2021.
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HEANBDRDE-—ANZF EHATNEAD -
RABZBHBHRBA DR CBITRAZHE
BEFTRBERBARNKBB A A HEREFHE
ZEFE - REBEARE-NAN-FRREERE
¥ ARETERTIRBEHRER -

BBRR 2B
AUBERER B —FRAT\REES
SRR ERETIE -
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